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Commissioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Eit 4501

Fat: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.eov

Director

April 26. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a
Community Health Institute (Vendor #161611-6001), Bow, NH to continue providing professional
support sen/ices to the Department's Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded
through federal grants, including access to preventive and reparative dental treatment for
individuals in the statewide community-based and school-based oral health programs, by
increasing the price limitation by $2,052,788 from $2,643,045 to $4,695,833 and by extending the
contract completion date from August 31. 2021 to August 31. 2023 effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 77% Federal/23% General

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 13,2019, item #12
and most recently amended with Governor and Coundl approval on March 25,2020, item #15.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022,
2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached financial table

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing professional support services to the
Department's Oral Health Program and to conduct an evaluation of the programs implemented in
the original agreement to help inform future efforts and sustainability planning. In addition this
amendment will expand on the scope of service to include implementation of a pilot project to
increase access to and use of recommended preventive oral health care and dental pain
management in an effort to reduce people's exposure to unnecessary opioids. The Contractor
has been able to provide support to the oral health program and has the capacity to implement
and integrate these additional services into their current contract. Due to the fact that the HRSA
grant that will be funding this project Is in year 3 of a 4 year grant, there was not sufficient time to
put this contract out to bid and therefore it is being added to the contract with JSI.

This amendment will expand on the Contractor will provide dental care coordination to
ensure access to urgent and preventive oral health care in order to reduce unnecessary opioid
prescribing in the emergency department for dental pain. In addition the Contractor, will ensure
a care coordination process that assists individuals who present at the emergency department for
non-traumatic dental conditions and who do not have a dental provider. The programs that are
being continued are school-based and community-based oral health programs for children, teens,
pregnant women, and adults with financial barriers to accessing care. Oral health programs
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include evidence-based clinical services for tooth decay prevention, screenings, and referrals for
restorative care.

The Contractor will provide care coordination services to individuals who present to the
emergency department at a hospital, for non-traumatic dental conditions. The Contractor will
utilize a care coordinator to provide patient outreach; assess barriers to accessing dental care;
and facilitate referrals to a dental provider for follow-up care. The Department anticipates an
increase in individuals who engage in routine oral health care, following vaccinations for COVID-
19. which will reduce the costs associated with treating non-traumatic dental conditions in the
emergency department. This will subsequently reduce the need for prescribing unnecessary
opioids as a method to manage dental pain.

The following populations will be impacted from the effective date of this agreement
through August 31. 2023:

•  16,470 students in schools with forty percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program:

•  91.440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers In NH annually:

•  9,500 people who use the emergency department for oral health care;

•  6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment;
and

•  1.3 million people will be impacted by oral health sunreitlance and professional
development activities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

As referenced in Exhibit 0-1, Revisions To General Provisions, Paragraph 3 of the original
contract; the parlies have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of senrices, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for
two (2) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the current programs that
provide oral health services to children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as
well as uninsured families living in New Hampshire will not be evaluated and sustainability
planning will not occur.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.366, FAIN #NU58DP006487; CFDA #93.236, FAIN
#T12HP31859; CFDA #93.898. FAIN #NU58DP006298; and CFDA #93.991, FAIN #
NB010T009366,

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Tht Department of Health and Human Services' Miesion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source 1

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001030 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001030 $0 $3,750 '  $3,750

Subtotal $45,000 $33,750 $78,750

Funding Source 2

05-95-90-901010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK

GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 ■  $420,000 $0 $420,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $60,000 $540,000 $600,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90072003 $0 $600,000 $600,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90072003 $0 $50,000 $50,000

Subtotal $1,680,000 $1,190,000 $2,870,000

Funding Source 3

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, ORAL

HEALTH

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90002215 $166,369 $0 $166,369
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $184,969 $0 $184,969
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90002215 $15,600 $165,769 $181,369
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90002215 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Subtotal $551,907 $377,138 $929,045

September 2020



FISCAL DETAILS

Funding Source 4

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH
100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $136,238 $0 $136,238
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $104,800 $0 $104,800
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $104,800 $50,000 $154,800
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $800 $199,200 $200,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $0 $178,200 $178,200
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080502 $0 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $346,638 $437,400 $784,038

Funding Source 5

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES.

COMPREHENSIVE CANCER -100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $0 $0 $0
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $8,700 $0 $8,700
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $1,450 $3,550 $5,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $0 $5,000 $5,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080083 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $18,850 $8,550 $27,400

Funding Source 6

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
COMPREHENSIVE CANCER -100% FEDERAL FUNDS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $0 $0 $0
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $300 $0 $8,700
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $300 $0 $300
2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $50 $2,950 $3,000
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $0 $3,000 $3,000
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080081 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $650 $5,950 $6,600

September 2020



DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Oral Health Promotion Partner

This T' Amendment to the Oral Health Promotion Partner contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a
Community Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of
business at 501 South Street 2^*" Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on March 13, 2019, (Item # 12), and as amended on March 25, 2020 (Item #15), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS,' the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Price Limitation, to read:

August 31, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,695,833.

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein, in order to
update the scope of services to absorb changes made by Amendment #1 and to add related
scope from a contract that terminated due to the economic impacts of COVID 19.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing in its entirety with
Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein in order to update the terms and conditions and funding
sources to align with this Amendment #2.

5. Modify Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 8-4, Amendment #2,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-6, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference^fiPein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
4/16/2021

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01.A02 Page1of4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B7198-7202^B3C-A073^1FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

8. Add Exhibit

9. Add Exhibit

10. Add Exhibit

11 Add Exhibit

12. Add Exhibit

13. Add Exhibit

14. Add Exhibit

15. Add Exhibit

16. Add Exhibit

17. Add Exhibit

18. Add Exhibit

19. Add Exhibit

20. Add Exhibit

21. Add Exhibit

B-7, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-8, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-9, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-10, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-11, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-12, Amendment #2, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-13, Amendment #2, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-14, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-15, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-16, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-17, Amendment #2. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

B-18, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

B-19, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

8-20, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A02

Amendment #2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date
4/16/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID; 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment #2 remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

4/18/2021

Date

4/16/2021

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DouSlgntd by:

>VK. /^OWlv

Name; Lisa Morris

Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.C—DocuSlgtMd by:
Name: Katie Robert

Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

4/19/2021

Docu8lgf>ed by:

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Amendment #2

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-01-A02 Page 4 of 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the Slate Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall provide Oral Health Promotion Partner (OHPP) services
for the Department in order to implement activities for NH residents, including
individuals in Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment and/or recovery
centers. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with school-based
and community-based dental programs.

2.1.2. Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers to
provide dental screenings, fluoride treatments and referrals to
services for individuals in substance use disorder (SUD) treatment
programs.

2.1.3. Assisting the Department with project management for Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Oral Health
Workforce grant. Including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas
(DHPSAs) for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug Monitoring
Program (PDMP), integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and emergency
department physicians, prescribing for dental pain management.

2.1.4. Assisting the Department with activities that will increase the reach of
school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch
(FRL) program.

2.1.5. Assisting the Department with the Third Grade Survey.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-A02

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

Page 1 of 14

Contractor Initials

Date
4/16/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID; 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure applicants complete an organizational
performance self-assessment, that includes but is not limited to the following
elements:

2.2.1. Organization Maturity.

2.2.2. Current plans for expansion or contracting

2.2.3. Staff levels.

2.2.4. Staff training experience.

2.2.5. Vision/Mission.

2.2.6. Recover Support Services.

2.2.7. Populations Served.

2.2.8. Governance and Administration.

2.2.9. Human Resources.

2.2.10. Volunteers/Interns.

2.2.11. Financial Management.

2.2.12. Organizational Management.

2.2.13. Risk Assessment.

2.2.14. Procurement/Monitoring.

2.2.15. Performance/Evaluation.

School-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to provide school-based oral health services in
order to increase access to statewide preventative services to low-income,
uninsured and under-insured children and adolescents, including those
enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.3.1. Assist the Department with developing and implementing an unbiased
process tool for selecting sub recipients to enter into
contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver school-based oral
health services.

2.3.2. Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

2.3.3. Ensure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

2.3.4. Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2020
with options to renew services for up to three (3) additional years.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-A02 Page 2 of 14 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.3.5. Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

2.3.6. Consult with the Department in early 2021 and annually thereafter to:

2.3.6.1. Determine through evaluation whether school-based
dental program contracts will be extended.

2.3.6.2. Assist the Department with actions to preserve
community-based services for NH's low-income,
uninsured, and under-insured children and adolescents,

including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The
Contractor shall conduct activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.3.6.2.1. Reviewing sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

2.3.6.2.2. Determining whether to renew sub recipient
contracts.

2.3.6.2.3. Renewing sub recipient contracts upon
Department approval.

2.4. The Contractor shall assist the Department with activities to increase the reach
of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student participation
rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program through
8/31/2023. The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited

to:

2.4.1. Supporting bi-annual and quarterly meetings of Work Group partners,
which shall be named no later than thirty (30) days from the contract
effective date. The Contractor shall:

2.4.1.1. Ensure invitations are sent to each member at least 30

days prior to each convening.

2.4.1.2. Ensure adequate meeting space Is reserved for each
convening.

2.4.1.3. Host a WebEx meeting for each convening, ensuring work
group members with barriers to attending can attend.

2.4.1.4. Scribe meeting minutes and ensure minutes are provided
to the Department for approval.

2.4.1.5. Provide other meeting logistics as needed.

2.4.2. Developing a sustainability plan for school based oral health services
during PY 1that outlines strategies for leveraging other resource
opportunities in order to reduce reliance on federal funds.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP.2019-DPHS-21-ORALH-A02

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

Pages of 14
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Date
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC1D2CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.4.3. Developing and implementing Communications Plans that include but
are not limited to;

2.4.3.1. A plan that supports school-based program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

2.4.3.2. A plan for target audiences, including but not limited to:

2.4.3.2.1. Legislators.

2.4.3.2.2. Decision makers.

2.4.3.2.3. Medicaid officials.

2.4.3.2.4. Government officials.

2.4.3.3. A plan to guide efforts for promoting:

2.4.3.3.1. The benefits and effectiveness of school-

based oral health activities.

2.4.3.3.2. Increased participation by school and children
in these services including a minimum of three
(3) communications materials.

2.4.3.4. Identification of:

2.4.3.4.1. Target audiences, including but not limited to,
parents, caregivers, medical and dental
providers, school personnel, and decision-
makers.

2.4.3.4.2. Key messages for each target audience;

2.4.3.4.3. Proposed communication channels;

2.4.3.4.4. A dissemination timeline;

2.4.3.4.5. Partner roles in plan implementation.

2.4.4. Including CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by the
Work Group in sub-recipient contracts for eligible school-based dental
programs.

2.4.5. Conducting evaluations of programs to assist with informing future
sustainability planning.

2.5. The Contractor shall work with the Department during PY 2 to prepare for the
Basic Screening Survey (BSS) for New Hampshire Third Graders in order to
update The New Hampshire 2013-14 Healthy Smiles - Healthy Growth Third
Grade Survey to be conducted during PY 3. The Contractor shall:

2.5.1. Work with the Department to develop a Memorandum of
Understanding/Agreement with dental hygienists (preferably
CPHDHs) to conduct the screenings of third grade students in
accordance with BSS requirements and in coordination with a survey

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute Exhibit A • Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

4/16/2021
RFP-2019-DPHS.21 -ORALH-A02 Page 4 of 14 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 740B719B-7202-4B3C-A073-041FC102CE8C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

expert from the Association of State and Territorial Dental Directors
(ASTDD) and the DPHS Chronic Disease Section Epidemiologist.

2.5.2. Work with the Department to convene the training session for the
dental hygienists, prior to the 2019-2020 school year.

2.5.3. Collect surveillance data during PY 3 from the BSS hygienists and
sharing the collected screening data with the Department. The
Contractor shall ensure;

2.5.3.1. Screening data does not include personally identifiable
information (Pll).

2.5.3.2. Once parental consent forms are completed, children are
screened and evaluated for dental needs and either

referred for services or provided services onsite, if the
school has an onsite option available.

2.5.3.3. Children and their parents are made aware of dental
sealants, their value and availability of sealants through
the school program and as well as the BSS and the
importance of oral health to overall health.

Communitv-Based Oral Health Services agreements

2.6. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to provide community-based oral health
services in order to increase access to statewide prevenlative services to low-
income, uninsured and under-insured children, adolescents, and adults
including those enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.6.1. Assist the Department with developing and implementing an unbiased
process for selecting sub recipients to enter into
contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver community-based
oral health services.

2.6.2. Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

2.6.3. Ensure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

2.6.4. Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2021
with options to renew services for up to two (2) additional years.

2.6.5. Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

2.6.6. Consult with the Department in early 2021 and annually thereafter to:

2.6.6.1. Determine through evaluation activities whether existing
contract/agreements for community-based dental
programs will be extended.
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2.6.6.2. Assist the Department in actions to preserve community-
based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and

under-insured children, adolescents, and adults including
those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The
Contractor shall ensure evaluations are completed and
include, but are not limited to:

2.6.6.2.1.

2.6.6.2.2.

2.6.6.2.3.

Reviewing sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

Determining whether to renew sub recipient
contracts.

Renewing sub recipient
Department approval.

contracts upon

SUD-related training

2.7. The Contractor shall implement and administer contracts/agreements with
dental centers to perform screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment centers that includes the utilization
of Certified Public Health Dental Hygienists in recovery centers who provide:

2.7.1. Screenings.

2.7.2. Decay management and desensitization services.

2.7.3. Patient education.

2.7.4. Referrals for treatment in dental clinics and offices.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist the Department with project management for HRSA
Oral Health Workforce grant, including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs)
for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP),
integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT),
and for dentists and emergency department physicians, prescribing for dental
pain management, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.8.1. ■ Ensuring an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-trained dental
professional to develop and implement academic detailing sessions
for dentists in DHPSAs, three (3) times per year.

Providing logistical support for three (3) PDMP trainings per year for
dentists in DHPSAs.

Providing logistical support for up to six (6) dental pain management
trainings between 6/30/2020 and 8/31/2023, for dentists and
emergency department physicians in DHPSAs.

2.9. The Contractor shall work with dental providers to establish workflows for
screening, which includes but is not limited to:

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
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2.9.1. Identifying who will be screened.

2.9.2. Identifying screening tools to be utilized.

2.9.3. Method of screening.

2.9.4. Identifying who will be responsible for managing the screening.

2.9.5. Identifying the individual responsible for conducting the brief
intervention.

2.9.6. Determining referral networks in place and if it includes a range of
providers and modalities.

2.9.7. Ensuring confidentially for referrals.

2.9.8. Determining follow-up processes for positive screens.

Care Coordination Project

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure patient care is available in a clinical facility located
in Grafton County, which is a DHPSA.

2.11. The Contractor shall convene and participate in a workgroup to establish a care
coordination program for individuals experiencing non-traumatic dental pain.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.11.1. The workgroup convenes on a quarterly basis and includes, but is not
limited to the option to attend:

2.11.1.1. At a physical location.

2.11.1.2. By telephone through conference call line available to all
.  participants.

2.11.2. The first workgroup is convened no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure a Care Coordinator coordinates dental services for

individuals who have non-traumatic dental pain. The Contractor shall:

2.12.1. Accept referrals from partnered emergency department(s).

2.12.2. Attempt to contact each individual to schedule a face-to-face
assessment.

2.12.3. Schedule an assessment for each individual in need of services to

determine:

2.12.3.1. Barriers to accessing dental care services.

2.12.3.2. Barriers to completing recommended course of dental
care.

2.12.4. Methods and programs available to mitigate barriers to dental care.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
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2.12.5. Assist patients with finding methods to overcome barriers to
completing recommended courses of care.

2.12.6. Ensure that 100% of patients referred to the care coordination
program are offered an appointment for dental care in a dental clinic.

2.12.7. Monitor and report timeliness of follow-up on referrals from the ED to
a dental clinic.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum of one (1) dental health professional
attends the Bi-State Annual Primary Care conference.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of eligible patients seeking care
coordination program services are assessed, evaluated, and appropriately
discharged.

2.15. The Contractor shall attempt follow up contact to each individual referred for
program services to assess barriers to accessing dental care, ensuring no
personal health care information is exchanged. The Contractor shall attempt
to contact individuals:

2.15.1. Via phone.

2.15.2. Via text.

2.15.3. In written form via postal mail.

2.15.4. In written form via email.

3. Project Management

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure project management best practices are
documented and performed throughout the term of the contract to start,
organize and prepare for the project, carry out project work, and formally close
out the project.

3.2. The Contractor shall meet with the Department on a bi-weekly basis to discuss
meeting and call schedules, activities, budgets and/or performance measures.

3.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to assess joint progress
toward objectives and activities on a semi-annual basis in order to assist the
Department with sharing products related to grant activities, which may include
but are not limited to:

3.3.1. Meeting agendas and minutes.

3.3.2. Written reports.

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure Project Management activities include, but are not
limited to:

3.4.1. Project Initiation and Planning

3.4.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct a project Kick Off Meeting,
within fifteen (15) business days of the contract

-DS
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amendment effective date which addresses topics and
activities that include but are not limited to:

3.4.1.1.1. A review of the project scope as defined in the
contract.

3.4.1.1.2. A review of the Initial Project Schedule and
Work Plan as identified in Exhibit A-1 Work

Plan.

3.4.1.1.3. A presentation on, and discussion of, project
management best practices to be utilized.

3.4.1.1.4. A" review of the templates that will be utilized
for each aspect of the project management
cycle, including but not limited to:

3.4.1.1.4.1. Monthly Project Reports

3.4.1.1.4.2. Issues Log.

3.4.1.1.4.3. Decision Log.

3.4.1.1.4.4. Risk Register.

3.4.1.1.4.5. Change Request Log.

3.4.1.1.4.6. Deliverable Acceptance
Log.

3.4.1.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Project Schedule
that will be the basis for the final approved Baseline Project
Schedule within five (5) business days of the Project
Kickoff Meeting, which consists of:

3.4-.1.2.1. Project milestones.

3.4.1.2.2. Activities.

3.4.1.2.3. Deliverables.

3.4.1.2.4. Task dependencies.

3.4.1.2.5. Due Dates.

3.4.1.3. The Contractor shall establish the Project Repository that
is comprised of all project related documentation and
ensure access is provided to appropriate Department
users.

3.4.2. Project Execution, Monitoring and Controlling

3.4.2.1. The Contractor shall schedule weekly, unless an
alternative frequency is approved by the Department,
Project Status Meetings following the Project Kickoff
Meeting.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
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3.4.2.2. The Contractor shall provide notes from the Project Status
Meetings to the Department within three (3) business days
from the date of each Project Status Meeting.

3.4.2.3. The Contractor shall schedule a Daily Huddle, lasting less
than thirty (30) minutes in duration, during the most
complex or challenging stages of the project upon
Department request.

3.4.2.4. The Contractor shall maintain the baseline and current

Project Schedules using a project management software
solution that:

3.4.2.4.1. Enables schedule of analysis.

3.4.2.4.2. Recalculates dates based upon approved
changes.

3.4.2.4.3. Tracks variances to the approved baseline.

3.4.2.5. The Contractor shall provide a written Monthly Progress
Report that contains a summary of the sub recipient's
activities, which include but are not limited to:

3.4.2.5.1. Work accomplished during the reporting
period.

3.4.2.5.2. Updated Project Schedule identifying
variances to baseline.

3.4.2.5.3. Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting
those issues that require immediate escalation
to ensure timely resolution.

3.4.2.5.4. A list of the highest priority risks, risk
ownership and status of the mitigation plan for
each.

3.4.2.5.5. Planned work for the next reporting period.

3.4.2.5.6; Requests for Department assistance
necessary to ensure successful project
delivery.

3.4.3. Project Closing

3.4.3.1. The Contractor shall schedule and conduct a Final Project
Meeting during which the Acceptance Log will be
presented for Department approval and sign-off.

3.4.3.2. The Contractor shall transfer the project repository,
including all documentation falling within state ownership,
to the Department.
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3.4.3.3. The Contractor shall be available for a Lessons Learned

session facilitated by the Department.

4. Reporting

4.1. By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide the number of sub-
recipient contracts/agreements in place for;

4.1.1. School-based dental programs.

4.1.2. Community-based dental programs.

4.2. By August 31 st each year, the Contractor shall provide reports that include only
aggregated data that pertains to how many individuals were screened and/or
treated along with other data that does not include any personally identifiable
information (Pll). The Contractor shall provide reports that include, but are not
limited to:

4.2.1. Annual School-Based Program Report Form.

4.2.2. Annual Community-Based Report Form.

4.2.3. An annual narrative report that includes performance measures for
oral heath visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers
to adults at SUD treatment centers.

4.2.4. An annual performance report for all continuing education sessions
delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

4.2.5. An annual narrative report describing meetings of the Work Groups
for School-Based Oral Health Services Enhancement, which includes

a sustainability plan.

4.2.6. An annual narrative report describing the Communications Plan and
products created and activities implemented from the
Communications Plans for the school-based oral health programs
and community water fluoridation activities.

4.2.7. For School-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.7.1. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services

agreements established.

4.2.7.2. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services site

visits conducted.

4.2.7.3. The number of students screened or treated through
School-Based Oral Health Services.

4.2.8. For Community-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.8.1. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
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4.2.8.2. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
site visits conducted.

4.2.8.3. The number of individuals screened or treated through
Community-Based Oral Health Services.

4.2.8.4. The number of individuals, in SUD settings screened,
treated and referred.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.2.9. For SUD-related training:

4.2.9.1. Report on match.

Number and type of CEUs provided.

Number of training sessions conducted.

Number of attendees who participated in training sessions.

Report on RQI cycles findings and related improvements.

4.2.9.2.

4.2.9.3.

4.2.9.4.

4.2.9.5.

4.2.9.6. Evaluation results for knowledge increase among training
attendees.

4.2.10. ForBSS:

4.2.10.1.

4.2.10.2.

Number of hygienists recruited; and

Number of hygienists trained.

The Contractor shall provide aggregate screening data collected from the Third
Grade Survey during the 2019-2020 school year to the Department upon
completion of the third grade screenings in a format approved by the
Department.

The Contractor shall submit information for the Care Coordination program
evaluation, which includes, but is not limited to:

4.4.1. Number of patients referred from a hospital emergency department.

4.4.2. Number of appointments made.

4.4.3. Number of appointments completed.

4.4.4. Number of patients that completed the recommended course of care.

4.4.5. Cost of providing care to patients referred from hospital emergency
departments.

The Contractor shall ensure each care coordination patient visit is documented
in aggregate data.

The Contractor shall submit aggregated data for care coordination services
performed no later than June 30th of each contract year, which includes, but is
not limited to:
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4.6.1. Number of patients diverted through the program to an oral health
professional.

4.6.2. Number of patients that attended their referral appointment.

4.6.3. Number of patients that completed their recommended course of
care.

4.6.4. Cost of providing services to patients referred through the program.

4.7. The Contractor shall provide a quarterly report utilizing information provided in
the evaluation, as referenced in Subsection 3.1.

4.8. The Contractor shall monitor and report timeliness of follow-up on referrals from
the ED to a dental clinic.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a process for accepting applications for oral health
funding from vendors to the Department for approval no later than two (2)
weeks from the contract effective date.

5.2. The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with school based programs
no later than six (6) months from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with community based
programs no later than eight (8) months from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide training curriculum identified in Subsection 2.6 to
the Department for approval no later than three (3) weeks prior to scheduling
the first training.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-trained

dental professional to deliver academic sessions for dentists at least three (3)
times per year.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for:

5.6.1. Three (3) PDMP trainings per year for dentists in DHPSAs.

5.6.2. Up to six (6) dental pain management trainings between 6/30/2020
and 8/31/2023 for dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit the finalized communications plan and materials in
to the Department for approval no later than 10 business days prior to releasing
the plan and materials to the Advisory Group partners.

5.8. The Contractor shall ensure any changes to the Work Plan in Exhibit A-1 are
provided to the Department in writing within five (5) business days of the
changes being accepted.

5.9. The Contractor shall meet all performance measures and deliverables
identified in Exhibit A-1, Work Plan.
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5.10. The Contractor shall hire and train a care coordinator within ninety (90) days of
the contract effective date.

5.11. The Contractor shall develop a sustainability plan for care coordination through
alternative funding sources, upon Department approval.

5.12. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of patient visits are documented.

6. Performance Measures

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure an attempt to contact 100% of patients whom are
referred to the program by the care coordinator to assess their barriers to
accessing dental care in accordance with Section 2.4 through 2.9.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of care coordination patients referred to the
program are offered an appointment for dental care in accordance with
Sections 2.4 through 2.9.

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of eligible care coordination patients seeking
care coordination program services are assessed, evaluated and appropriately
discharged, in accordance with Sections 2.4 through 2.9.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the services
provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows:

Source of Funds Year 1

(SFY19)
Year 2

(SFY20)
Years

(SFY21)
Year 4

(SFY22)
Year 5

(SFY 23)
Year 6

(SFY 24)

2.1. 100% Federal Funds from Centers for

Disease Control & Prevention,
Preventive Health & Health Services

Block Grant, CFDA #93.991, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN),
NB010T009366

Awarded: September 16, 2020

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $3,750

2.2. 39.74% Federal Funds from Centers

for Disease Control & Prevention,
Preventive Health & Health Services

Block Grant CFDA #93.991, FAIN
NB010T009366 and 60.26% General

Funds

Awarded: September 16, 2020

$420,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $50,000

2.3. 100% Federal Funds from Centers for

Disease Control & Prevention, State
Actions to Improve Oral Health
outcomes CFDA #93.366, FAIN
NU58DP006487

Awarded: June 1, 2020

$166,369 $184,969 $184,969 $181,369 $181,369 $30,000

— OS
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2.4. 100% Federal Funds from Health

Resources & Services Administration

Grants to States to Support Oral Health
Workforce Activities, CFDA #93.236,
FAINT12HP31859

Awarded: July 1, 2020

$136,238 $104,800 $154,800 $200,000 $178,200 $10,000

2.5 100% Federal Funds from NH Breast

and Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive
Cancer and Cancer Registry Program,
(Comprehensive Cancer job#) CFDA
#93.898. FAIN NU58DP006298.

Awarded: August 24, 2020

$0 $8,700 $8,700 $5,000 $5,000 $0

2.6 100% Federal Funds from NH Breast

and Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive
Cancer and Cancer Registry Program,
(Breast and Cervical Cancer job#)
CFDA #93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298

Awarded: August 24, 2020

$0 $300 $300 $3,000 $3,000 $0

TOTALS: $737,607 $913,769 $963,769 $1,004,369 $982,569 $93,750

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment #2, Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of:

3.1 .$737,607 for State Fiscal Year 2019.

3.2.$913,769 for State Fiscal Year 2020.

3.3. $963,769 for State Fiscal Year 2021.
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3.4. $1,004,369 for Stale Fiscal Year 2022.

3.5. $982,569 State Fiscal Year 2023.

3.6. $93,750 State Fiscal Year 2024.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the yearly required match that is identified in Section 3, is in non-federal contributions either
in cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) and be approved by the Department.

5. The Contractor shall provide bi-annual reports, Exhibit B-5 Match Report Form, of itemized matching funds in accordance
with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR Part 75.306 no later than January 15th and June 15th.

6. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current and/or future funding.

7. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

7.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement,
and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits B-1, Budget through Exhibit B-20,
Amendment #2 Budget.

7.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth (20'^) working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred during the prior month.

7.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department in order to
initiate payment.

7.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, subsequent to
approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

8. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-funded programs and services and
have records available for Department review, as requested.

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified in
Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

f—
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10. in lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbilling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

11. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit A, Scope of
Services and in this Exhibit B, Amendment #2.

12. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this agreement may be
withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this agreement.

13. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between budget
line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

14.Audits

14.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department if any of the following conditions exist:

14.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in federal funds received as a subrecipient
pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

14.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b,
pertaining to charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

14.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by Security and Exchange Commission
(SEC) regulations to submit an annual financial audit.
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14.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit performed by an independent Certified
Public Accountant (CPA) to the Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year,
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

14.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual financial audit performed by an
independent CPA within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

14.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is understood and agreed by
the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions arid shall return
to the Department all payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have
been disallowed because of such an exception.

JSI Research & Training Institute Exhibit 8. Amendment #i Contractor Initials

4/16/2021
RFP -2019-DPHS-21 -ORALH-01-A02 Page 5 of 5 Date



OdcuSVi Eff.llapl D. T4eeTi»72a2UBJC-*e7>««IFCt03CUC

OnlHtaSti Premeclen Paitn«( Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2

N«w Hampshire Depaitment of Health and Human Servicts

Centrecter natne JSI ReMirch a Training ImtRule. Inc. dWa Community HaaBh inaUtuia

Butfpat Roetioai tor. Oral Health Promotloo Partner

Budget Ported; SFY »21 (711/20 to «/)0m21)

Total Program Cost Conlractor Share / Match Funded by OHHS contract share

Line Item Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect TiMal Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Weoes 122,976.00 122.976.00 4.395.00 4,395.00 118.581.00 116,581.00
2. Employee Benefits 46.730.00 46,730.00 1.670.00 1,670.00 45.060.00 45.060.00

3. ConsUlants 37,400,00 37.400.00 12.000.00 12.000.00 25.400.00 25,400.00

4. Equipment: 3,559.00 3,559.00 3.559.00 3.559.00
Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depredation

5. SuppHes/Qenetal ofTice 8.607.00 8.607.00 308.00 308.00 8.299.00 8299.00

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel 2,491.00 2,491.00 2.491,00 2,491.00
7. Occupancy 12.300.00 12.300.00 440.00 440.00 11,860.00 11.860.00

8. Current Expenses including: 9.840.00 9,840.00 352.00 352.00 9.488.00 9.488.00
Telephone

Postape
Subscriptions

Atxiit and Legal

Insurance

9. Softvrare

10. MarfcetinQ/Communicalions 29.920.00 29.920.00 21.920.00 21.920.00 6.000.00 8.000.00

11. Staff Education and Trairfng 2.461.00 2.461.00 88.00 88.00 2.373.00 2,373.00
12. SubcorWacta/Aoreements

13. Other: Printing & Shtppirtg
707.000.00 707,000.00 707.000.00 707.000.00

21.500.00 21.500.00 20,000.00 20.000,00 1.500.00 1,500.00

Marketing 747.00 20.158.00 20.905.00 747.00

Turns'
747.00

1—to™
20.158.00

Tsysm
20.158.00

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent el Oire^
1,005,531.00 20,158.00 1,025,689.00 61,920.00 963,769.00

2.0%

JSI Reeearen Training Instttuie. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Instltuta
RFP.20190PH&-2 t-ORALH

EnNM B-3, Amendment S2

Page 1 ot I

Contractor kvilab
[5



OewSieR Ew*eeD. 740071»-7ra-<BX-««7>WIFC1D9CE*C

Exhibit B-4, Amendment #2

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Cemrseter Kame: JSl Reeearcti i Tnitring bntMut*. Inc. d/b/a Comimmity Health Instltuie

Budget Reeueel for: COC Block Grant

OrW w>4ar> ftenueew

Budget Ptded; July t. 202t • Juim M. »22

Total Program CesP contractor snare I Match

Indirect

TufMed By dhkS contract Star?*
DIreci Indirect Total DIrecl Total Direct indirect' Total

42.'lOS.OO1. Total Stietvrwaqec

2. Employee Beneftia

4Z10S.00

I3,97«.0013.979.00

3, Ccnstdlantt

4. Equipntent;

Repair ar>a MaWenance

Purehate/Oepredatloo

5. SuppUes'Qerteral oKlce:
Educational

Lie

Pharmaey

OMce

8. Travel

7. Oceupertcy

8. Cunere Expentet Indudinq:

Telephone

Poctaoe

SuesctipUorts

Aude and Leoal

9, Software

to. MarVetlnorCcmmunicatiena

H^_^taflEduealien^nd^raine^
12. Sutteoraraat/Aorecinetea

13. Other (tpeofic aetadt mandatorvt:

12.S48.0O 12.S48.00

12.848.00 T UT.^LU
12.848.00

TTOTW
12.848.00

ui!w.uTOTAL

Indirect Aa A Pare em of Direct' 2.1«

JSI Reaearth Training Institute. Inc. dib/a Community Heath hsUtuta
RFP-20180PHS-21-ORALH-A02

BdSbii B^. Amendmera 82

Page 1 el 1

Contractor Miais
[5



twiifcp. ID: 7«e»7H»-7TO 'BK OCTl BltFCIOXttC

Exhibit B-$, Amendment #2

■New Htmpshire Department of Health and Human Services

CMKrseier Name: JSI RcMareh 4 Training kistttuia, ktc. d/ttfa ComrnunCy HaiM> kutlMlt

Builgal Raguasr tor: COC knprovirtfl a Sustaining Oral HaaRh Outcomas
ew hUettAimaeeWr^ra*

Budgal Parted: July 1. »2t • Juna U. »22

ToUl Program Co?* ^antracterSRaiTr Matcli Fundad EyTJUT^cenrract anara
Urw Ram Diraci Total iTKllracl Total IrtdlracI

1, Total Salafy/Wagos 27.2aa.00
2. Emptoyaa Banalas e.oas.oo fl.oaa.oo
3. ConsuRana

Eouipmanl:
Ranal
Repair and Malntenariea
PurcftayaOaprectatlon

S. Suppaes/aanerai eRIea
Educalienal

S. Travel
7. Occupancy

tj_Cirrei«_E^auMjnA^i2L
Taleprtona

Suttscriptletw
Audii and Uoai

10. MarltetinoiConynunicatiora
tt. Sun Educatleit and TraawiQ
12- Suoeentracts/Acraamenu
13, Oe>er(specilic aerate mandaiory):
PrintInQ costs
Evahiaiion costs

t.lig.W
i.tts.oe T

S.110.00
Tnwss ■roni T

S,t 19.00
■tnrw

a,119.00
alluiii

kidlract As A Parcani ol Oireci

Comraciot tMbals
JSI Raseareti Training htsStula, kie. d/b/a CommunRy Haain ktsiHuls
RPP-201»^OPHS-21-ORALH-A02
ExMMB4. Amendfr>enlf2
P^ 1 of 1



ftimflyi EfMiw> B: 7<ee7H^7M».4eiC-*gT>e«tFC10Xe«C

Exhibit B-7, Amendment #2

New Hunpshirt Oepartment of Health and Human Services

CentraeiM Name: iSI Resaarch a Training histinita, kw. dftwa CommunKT HaaBh butltuu

Butfgal Raguaat lor HRSA Oral HaaKh WarUerea

Orar HmBi AamaanW rvim

Budget Parfod: Jidy 1. Mil - Juna M.

Total Progrifn CosF Contractor SItara / I4atcti Fundad Oy DHHS corttrac^RarT
Una Ram Indiraci htdlracl "TSuT Indvaci

1. Total SatarylWaQea 71.747.00 t8.605.00 t

6.207.00 T2. E/npiayaa Benafti 23.620.00 6.207.00

3. CortsuBanla

t. Eoiapmant

Repair and Malwartartea

PurdtaseiDapraclation

5. Supp*ea7oanaral Qgiea

EdueaUonal

_Pl»«ma£L

Office

Occupancy

8^_^urreia_B2*m2j!^!S!CBL
Talephone

Poeiaoa

SuttscripttoBs

_AiM^id_Laga^

to. MartietinQlCenaTwrtcatiBns

t1. Stan Etiucation and Trainino

t2. SuPcorafaqa/Adreementt

t3. outer (speolicaetalbmaneaterY):

2t.moo

21J8«U>0 7
2t.3M.OO

■synJism ■nTBsr 7
5.570.00

73713?
5.570.00

713113? Ttl!??13?
15.610.00

713713?
tS.6tO.00

7113113?
hdkeel As A Percent e( Oiract

Cenlracaor Indlab
JSl Research TraMng ktsRIula. Inc. d/tVa Communiry Heath InsUluia
RFP.2019-OPKS-2t'ORALH-A02
&diiM 8-7, Arrtendrtteni «2
Page I ol t



Pawieiri Erwelw O: 7««TtW-73G3-«]C-MT>«l'CimCC«C

Exhibit B-8, Amendment #2

New Kampshirt Otpartment of Heaith and Human Services

Contractor Narno: JSI Roooareh t Training fetstltiitt. Inc. d/h(a Convnunity Health tostituia

Oudgot Raguni for: COC Block Grant (100% (odoral)
Oral HMTi AamaM Pmmt

DudgM Ported: JiSy 1. letl ■ Jutm }». WU

Total Program Co^ ^oniracu^TSw?! Match

Utto Rom fctdiroci Irtdlroct Total Olroct

Funded try DHH3 contract oharo

Indiroct Total

tj_^olal_Salarj/Wa2e^
2

l,S7».00 t

S24.o6 T". Emptoyoo Benolcs

3. Constdtartts

4. EquipmonI;

Reooir and Mainienartco

PurchaaaOoprodation

Sj_S«iggljn{2wierM^ne^

l.ab

Pharmacy

Medical

7, Occupancy

8. CiirrerR Eapetttea ktcladlrta:

Teiophone

PoMago

_8^M2jBdo<^
Audit and Legal

kuurance

8. Software

10. MaikgtifxirCommijnicalicrts

11. Stall Eduction and TraWfig

12;_Subcortra^rAgre«mg]^
13. Other (specHic delate mandatory):

<71.00 .

471.00 I 8
471.00

TTJsiim 13333?
471.00

■333?
471.00

1I3833?
bidhect Aa A Percent of Oireci

JS) Resoarch Trdrdng bstSule. Inc. dfbra Commiinlly Heath huUtule
RFP.201MPHS-21-ORALH^
EjddbR BO. Amendment «2
Page 1 of i

ConeaOer Mtab.



OixWgr twiiku p 7«ee7ise-7?c2-4eicwio7»e4t«ciMccic

Exhibrt B-9, Amendment #2

New Hampshirt Oepaitment of Health and Human Services

Contraeter Name: JSI Research a TraMng kixtthiM, hte. d/b(a Cocnmun«7 Health btstlMe

Budget Reeueel tor COC Comprehensive Cancer Cram

Or#Meett

eutfg«( P«rM: July 1. »21 • Jun* U. M22

iotal Program Cost'
Urte Bern

conlraaor Share / Match Funded By OHH3 conlrect ehare

hvdirec^^^""
I, TotalSalafY/wages

2. Empteyee Beoeto

), ConsuRants

4. Equipmem:

Rental

Repair and Mairwenartce

PurchaseOepteciatlon

Sj_Sug£aM22eftertf_oei^
Educatisnel

Lao

Phafmacy

Medlcai

7. Oeorpaney

8^_^ijrrM_E^euMjnAdn2^
Tetephone

Postaoe

SubscraWons

Audit and Lepal

S. Software

10. ManieUno/Certumiriicatierts

11. Stall Education and Trainftw

12. Suoeomraets/imreements

13. Other UpecdiC detafts mandatory):

Subject Matter Experts

IS7M T
I $7.00

I.U1.U
157.00

itm
157.00

TssasTBSSS
Indirect A* A Percent el Direct 1.2%

JSI Research Training Irtslttule. Inc. d/bla Cemmunily Heath hnUule
RFP.2019-OPH3.2t-ORALH^2

ExMbB B-9. AmenOtnem *2

Page 1 at I

Ceniraeier mdab

4/16/2021



CfcoiWyi tw*p» D: T««71W.7Xe<<nc-*0rvO«<»C1OXC*C

Exhibit B-10, Amendment #2

Ntw Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Centneier Kama: JSI Resaareh 4 TraMng kistitiita. Inc. dnwa Coramunar Health bntltuu

Butfgat ftaeuMt (er CDC Braati S Carvkal Canear Pregretn (DCCP)

OrafHmBi AemoawMf

Btidgal Pariod: JtSy 1. M}1 - Juna M. »2>

Total Program CesT Coniractor Shan / Match TtSn3a^^TtT7coMracl ahara
Una Ram biditaci Indlraci bKlirocI

I. TetalSalxVWaaea

Z. E/npioyaa Benafaa
3, CoRsuaaMs

a. EotRpcnant:

ReoaV ana MaWananea

PurchasaiDepfacialion

$. SwpHea^enatal eliice

Edueallonal

Lab

PhatmacT

Medical

7. Occupancy

8^_CivrafR_E^a(ttMjnAtfin2^
Telephone

PoWaoe

SuttsenpBooe

AudaanaLeoal

9. Softwate

^Oj^JRarVMinglConvnunia^
11 ■ Slall Eaueation ana TraWnq

12. BuOcenPecta/Aafeemenu

13. oeiai (apecilic oelate manoatory):

SoOjaa Maitei Exoen

Te.oo >9.00
"ms

79.00

79.00 T TRTW
79.00

TBSm
bidhacl As A Percent ol Diract 2.7*

JSI ftasaarch Tr*nlne Instttula. Inc. d/bia Conununtt; HaaRh btsutise
RFP-2019-OPH$-21-ORALHWUI2

ExtOb* B-10. AfltendmanI *2

Page 1 ot I

Cantracw IneMs



eeeueen£n.i«w» B; «ex wj a«ig<ioac£*c

Exhibit B-11, Amendment 02

New H«mpst)ire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Namt: JSi Rtaoarch S Training kistitifl*. inc. d/M Comtnunltv Haatdi ktatltult

Budgol Ro<|uo*t lor CDC Slock Oranl

OWHxei AewwW Owtw

Budgol Ptfiod: July 1, 2022 • Juna U. 202J

rotoi ProgrS^osT Conlractor Share / Match

Indiroct kvdiract

1. Tolal SaiofyWaoei

2
42.104,00

. Empleyeo eanotia 13,979.00 13.979.00

3, CertMllait}

4, Eqiipmant:

Ramal

Repair one Mainlenonca

PuttriaaolDeptociation

4, SuppHes^oneral oBlce

Ptiarmacv

7, Oceupaney

9, Currant Erpenaoa wduOing:

Tatepnena

Peaiaqa

StiOacriptlOna

Auda and Logal

kotiranca

9, SoOwara

lOj^JJafkMing^CwnrnunjMjw
_StaflEdiiMlienjnd^r^nfe)^

12. SuOeontraca/Aoraemanu

13. Other (tpacilic detaib mandatorr):

12.449.00

12^010 T
12.449,00

TSKBSSm ■nrsES
12.449,00

iLUiM
1ZS49.00

TslBrsr
kidUacI As A Percent o( Direct

JSI Research Training fcanuia. he. tVM Community Heath hsUtula
RFP-20I9«PH$-21-ORAL>4-A02
Extkbd e-11. Amendment 92
Page I ol 1

Coneahor Irattab.



Oiim»»'i Eiwelw 7«een*-72aa-*ic-«eT»6«iFe: OKtse

COC Impreoing SustaMng Ont HeaUi 0<<ee>ne$
Exhibit B-12, Amendment #2

New Hempshire Department of KeaKh and Human Services

Centneter Neni*: JSI Research a TrsMng kittltuM, kw. dfb/s CommunllT Health kutituie

Budget Requesi for. COC knprovkrg a Sustaining Oral HeaRh Outeemes
On#HmSAAemeeenk^re*

Budget Period; July 1, 2022 • Jurx ». 2e2S

JSI Research a Training kistltun. Inc. t/bl» Ccmfflunhy Health ktttltuls

COC Oral Disease

OurHMk» »w«is«nir Pmttm

July 1.2e22-June M. 2022

"total Program CosF
Line Item

2;_^0lal_$daQrlWa2e^
2

27.2*8.00 S

e,0*8.00 T

Contractor Shars

ktdkoct

Funded try OHHS coMract share

. Emptoyee Benetas

}, Consutares

*. Eqnlpmeie:

Rsnul

Ret>air and Maintettance

PurcfiaseOeprodaiien

Sj_SuggllM/2WterW_eei^
Educatienai

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Offica

7. Oeeupaney

B, Current Expansas irKluOInQ:

Teieptiona

Postage

Subscriptions

AudS sna Logsl

Insurance

9. Software

10. MsrVetirrorComtnunicelions

J2;_2aR_Eduatten^id^njne|^
12. Subeontrects/AdreeiTiefrts

13. Other (specrK Oeulls mandstory):

PrkHinQ costs

EvshiBlion costs

S.120.00

8.120.80 7
4.i%

8.120.00

Tirsnjm T7334530 tlUloi
kidksct As A Perctni ol Oiract

JSI Resoarch Training kistltuls. bte. d/Va Community Haath ktsiltuto
RFP.201MPHS-2I-ORALH-A02

ExNbllB-12. Amendment*2

Page 1 M I

Centraetor kUltais.



ChwOin Eiiiili»i IP; 74aa71M>T2CQ-<ne-l«r»««1«C103CC*C

Exhibit B-13, Amendment tt2

New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Nama: JSt ftotoircA a TraMng kutituM. kw. Olbl* ConvnunKy HotUt kistituu

Butfgat Rtquost (or HRSA Oral HuDh WerUocct

On/HnttiPmctet^PwBm

Budgal P*rio4: Jufy 1. »22 • June JO. 2e21

Ucw Bam

1. Total SataryWacaa

Z Emptoyaa Banatai

S. ConsuBants

4. Equltanera:

Renal

ReMlf and MaWenanee

PurcftasaOepfectaijon

S. SuppHeslpeneftl eHiea

EOucatienat

Pttannacy

7, Occupaney

8;_CnTon_E22J22Jl!22SL
_TeJe£hoo^
Poftaoa

SubaCfipUona

AuU Leg

Total Program Co? Contractor snare / Match

bxllrect bkect
FimOeO by DHHS contrac^fSarT

S3,<H2.00 t

17.S1J.00 T
S3.0S2.OO

I7.et3.00

al

I. SoAware

10, MarlietlnoiCommunlcatiana

I. Stan EdueaUon anO TraWno

12. Subccnraea/Aereemerita

13. OWet (apeotic geraannandatoiy);

21.300.00 .

2iz«e.ee ̂
2I.3M.00

"snmr
S.570.00 "T5753J

"owa UiMU irnm

JSI ReaoarcB TraMng Instttuie. Inc Communlly HeeCti instaule
RFP-201SOPHS-21•ORALH-A02

ExriMtB-13. Amen(lmen«2

Page I e(l

Cttilraclor Mliab,



Oimayiewiiin t>. r«aTi«^7»s-<e3c-*or>Mt«ctoxete

Exhibit B*14, Amendment #2

Ntw Hampshira Dapartment of HeaKh and Human Services

Centraetsr Name: J9I RcMarcti S Training fcistituM, kic. dihia Convnunily Haaitti fenlltiile

Budget Request lor CPC Btock Grant (104% lederal)

Budget Period: July 1,1022 •June 20.202)

Contractor Stura / lilaleli
iTHtlrael

Funded by DHHS contract ettaraTotal program Co^
Miraet

Total BataiVWaQci

2. Emptoyae Benefits

3. ConsuUnts

4, Equipment:

Rental

Repair and MairaerMrKa

PiittftateiOepteclation

CuppeasRienetal <

lap

Pltannacy

Otlice

Occuoaitcy

a. Current Expenses itdudinc:
T I i t efc ■ ■ tlewpnooe

Postage

SuPscriptlens

Auda and legei

Insuranee

to. MarltetlnolCommutacaUoni

11. Stan Education and TraWng

12. SuPcontracts/Agreerttents

13. 0tt>et(spec»licget3iBniao0Btory):

471.00

U.W.U TTRnr
471.00

TTTO
471.00

feidirset As a Percent of Oircci

JSI Researcp TraMng btsiRuie. Inc. dit/a ComnaaWy Heath Instituie

RFP-20t0^)PHS-21-ORALH-A02

Exhibit B-14. Amendment *2

Paoo 1 ol 1

Contractor ItMMs.[5



r Dv 7<«71»rs».<BX-«CIT»44IF«ll»cetC

Exhibit B-15, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Cemracior Nam*: JSI Ratearch a Training hruinil*. bic. SfM Community HaaBh kutlluu

Budget R*quMl lor. COC Comprttwnsiv* Cancer Gram

0™< AemmofWINiew

Budget Period; July 1, M22-June W. 202J

Total Program CotF Contractor Share / IJalcri

bMllrect

Funded Oy DHH9 coMract share

Irrdireci'
1. Total Salaryrwigq

2. Employo* Benefits

3. ConauSatits

*, Equipment:

Repeir and Mainianance

PurettaeoOetxociatlen

3. SuppHealaenefal Qgice

Edueaiiottal

Pttarmacy

7. Occupartcy

i. Current Expontea ndudino:

Poetape

Subacriptlona

AudK and Legal

to, Marltetam^ooimunlcationa

It. Stall education arto TraWng

12. SuPcontractVAoreomenU

13. Other (tpecriic detaib mandatory):

Sueioct Matter E^grort

ISTjOO IS7.00

isra
157.00

TBTBTcisy
hidirecl As A Percent of Oireci

JSI Researcn TraMng koStuie. Inc. dibfa Communiry HeaBi kntituie

RFP-2019-OPHS-21-ORALH.A02

ExNHl B-tS, Amendment *2

Page 1 of I

Ccneaaor Imttals.



Eiwetepe D: 740aTI«^r»»4MC-«OT>«tirci(»CE«C

Exhibit B-16, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Mama: JSI Raaearch S Training kutituta. Inc. d/M Comrnunity HaaXh fculitufa

Budget Raquaat for: COC Breast S Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP)
On# Heon PmmeenOArew

Budget Period: Jidy t. 2421 - June i». 2021

^iSiSeTpy DHKS coruracl iftaie

Lino Ram

Total ProgrSr^osT Contractor Share I Match

Indlraci Total htdiract

I. Total SaUrr/Wagea

2. EmptByaa BanetB

3. ConsuRanIs

4, Equipmeni:

Repair and Maatiananee

PureflasoOeprocialion

5. Supp>e»<ienaral oeiee

Edueailonil

_PtiarmaOL

omca

S. Travel

7. Occupancy

Bj_Curram_Er2amMjnAtfn2^
Taiapt»ot>a

Postaaa

Sutrseripliefts

Audit and Legal

S. SoAwara

10. Mar1tatino<Ccrr«rttunic«Uoro

11. StatI Educatioo and TraWno

12. SuPeorSracta/VireerTtania
23;_Od>erJi£eM|C_d«albjnandai^^
SuOjecl Manar ExparB

7»!00

Tmm
79.00

Tssra
fetdkact As A Petccm o( Oiraci

Contractor MMs,[5
JSI Rasaareh Training Instttule. Inc. ddxa Comnumity HaaRh ktstituia
RFP-2019^PHS-21-ORA1J+Wt02

ExMM B-ie. Amandmam n

Pma I d 1



t  7«e7i»rBauBac^i>eT>Mtccimcc*c

Exhibit B-17, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Centneier Nam*: J3I RMcareti a Training eitOtuM, Inc. d/bri Communily HaaKh kntltuta

Sudgal Raquast Ion COC Slock Cnni
On!NmBi AmOM

Budgot Pofiod: July 1, nil-August 11.20U

Contractor SAaro 77133!"

irvO tract

Fundad by DHHS contract sttaraTotal Program Co^

I. Total SataryWagos 4.210.00 t

l,3St.OO T"2. Efnplayoa Banafits

3. ConsuHanls

Equipniani;

Raraal

Repair and Mainttnanco

PurcnasaOapradation

5. Suppaeslgenaral oinco

_Phaittiac)^

OITica

8. Travel

7;_^ca2223L
8. Current Eigensaa eidudino:

Talepnooa

Postapa

_SuM2£eot^
AudS and Legal

». Soflwara

to. Madetino/CorTimunicaiions

t1. Suit Education and TraWno

13. SuOcontraels/Aoraarttants

1.288.00

TR8m
1.288.00

-arm
1.288.00

TBTB
1.288.00

■nSor1488.00 T
kidlract A* A Percent ol Oiraci

JSI Resaarcn TraMng ktsUlula, kic dfb/a Communily HaaBi kutiluta
RFP-2010.0PHS-21-ORALH-A02
ExNM B-17. Amertfmeflt t2
Pago 1 ol 1
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Exhibit B-18, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

CentrseiM Nama: JSI Rcseartli S TreMng kictttuM, Inc. d/b/a ComfliunSy HailWi ettUtuu

Budpel Request (er CDC knprevfeig I Sustaining Oral HeaRh Outcomes
OnfHMSaAemmml AWM'

Budget Period; Jtdy l, tOtt-Augual )l. »24

Total PfogrSi^otr Contractor SItafi I Match Funded tnr OHHS contract elure

ijfte Rem Indirect Total ■ndlrset

I. TotalSalarrWafles
2. Emptoree Benetts
J, ConsuRaitts

_E3tii£me«^

Reoelt at>d Mainienartee
PurcflaseOeereeiatlon

S. SuQcies'oencrtloeice

Lab
PttarmacY
Medical

6. Travel

7j_^eo2e23L
i. Current Eapertses SKiudine:

Teiepnene
Postaoe

_8uta2jBtiot^
Audit and Legal

9. SoRwwe

n. staff Educatien and TralninQ
12. Suecoritraca/Aoreertwnts
13. Other (speotic details mandettxy):

7BS.OO TBS.OO

"masr«.oe T
11%

usim
ItiM

ims
7as.oo

bidirect As A Percent ot Dkeci

JSI Researcn Training Insetule. Irtc. dib/a CommunRy HesBi InstRule
RFP-20IW)PHS-21-ORALH.A02
ExMbR B-1S. Amendment *2
Page 1 ol 1

Contractor Inmab.(5
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HRSA Ond H«Mh WcrtlBfM Exhibit B-19

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Cantracter Name: JSI ReMirch & TraMng hixttRil*. Inc. d/tM Cemmunity HeaBh kistituw

Butffftt Reqiwsl roc HRSA Oral HMlth Werttert*
Or#Mwo ryemaeeurrw*

Budgot Rartod: July 1, MIS- August }1. 202}

Funded by DHHS contnc^Rsr^Total PrDgratn Cost' Contractor SAara/ hlatch

Mtract

1. Total Salary Wages 1.002.00

sioisr2. Empteyisa Bartefits

3. Consueanis

_Egid£rnant^
Ramal

Repair ana Malmor>ar>ea
PurchasoOeproqation

5. SutmeosRiarteral Qglea

Eduealtertal

_P1iarmac]^

Oflica

7. Occupancy

3, Curratd EJ^enses iftdudInQ:

Tslspfterw

Postaoa

Sut»cripl»or>s

AudS and Legal

10. MarketinoiComBHintcaUera

11. Staff EOucaHon and TraeidtQ

12. SuOcontracts/Aoreemants

^2£££5!; deta^ mandaxorr):

Mteo 3H.00

U.iU.U TKSCT Tnm
314.00

■nrn
314.00

"TumsTOTAL

IndeocTAs A Rarteni ol Dlra^

Coneaooc battab.
JSI ResaarcA TtaMrq ktstMula. ktc dlM CemmunRy HaaBi btstitula
RFP-20IMPHS-21-ORALH-A02
ExNtdt B-19. Amendment «2
Rage 1 oll
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Exhibit B-20, Amendment #2

Naw Hampshirt Department of Health and Human Services

Centrectof M«n«: J9I R«s«*reti a Tninine kistttul*, Ine. d/M Community Hoallh bttttttM

BudQOt Roquosi lor COC Block Gnnt (100% fodoral)
M MhDI AofMOAamnVMr

Budgol Ported; July 1. »23- August )1, M24

Cenmclor Shw* / Match TunSo^^nnTcontraci sTure

lino Rom

Total Progcam Co^
Indircci Indiroct Total Indirect Total

t. Total SalafviWagos

2. emptoyoo Bonete^
3. ConsuRanIs

*. Equlpmoni;

Rental

Repair and Walntenaneo

PurcWasoOepfeqatioo

5. SuppeeoAienoral oBee

_Pfianijaej^

Otilce

«. Travel

7. Occupancy

Sj_CurT«il_EJ2*<2£j2£SSL
Tote phone

Pewaoo

Suooeripuons

Audit and Legal

Sollware

10. MarkeUnoiCemmunleatlons

11. Staff Education and TfoWnq

12. 8«ibeenlr»aa/A<ireements

13- Ott>er lipeoiie deiaRt manooioty):

5ut>|ea Manor Erperts 2.700.00

160.00 100.00

Tnny Tssm
100.00

■nrw
100.00

TRSW
ktdlrsct As A PercoM o< Oireci

Contractor Indiati.
JSI Resoareh Training Instltiilo, htc. dlbla Community KoaBi kistitulo
RPP-2010-OPHS-21-ORALH-A02
ExnttM B-20. Amondmeid «2
Page 1 o> 1
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretarj' of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY HEALTH

INSTITUTE is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 12. 2016. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this ofilce is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0005334293

tarn

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afll.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secrctaiy of State



DocuSign Envelope ID: F781E629-6577-4B1A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secrctar>' of Slate of ihe Stale ofNcw Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Februaiy 17.

2016. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretaiy of Slate's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this oiTice is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0005320658

10.

W5>
A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 29th dav of March A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretan' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSI Research & Training institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby

certify that:

1. I am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health

Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2019 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research & Training

Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated August 8^2019.

RESOLVED; Appointment of Kalherine Robert as Director of the Community Health institute with the authority

to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation effective August 8, 2019.

3. 1 further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force

and efTect as of March 30th^ 2021.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Insiituje.

Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute this 30th day,of March 2021.

r

oel , PresidentSlei

rATE qfNcw Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this30th day of March. 2021 by Joel H.

Lamstein.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:
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/KCOKD

JOHNSNO-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DMEANEY

DATE (MAVOOnfYTY)

9/10/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

.  IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Armfleld, Harrison & Thomas, Inc. dba AHT Insurance
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

cjujACT Judy Yeary

wcX.Bxi): (781) 447-5531 (^.no1;(781) 447-7230
ln?ft!bss- Jyeary@ahtln8.com

INSURERISl AFFOROING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURED ditla Community Health Institute
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
501 South Street

2nd Floor

Bow. NH 03304

INSURER B Executive Risk indemnity 35181

INSURER C

INSIJRFR D

INSURERE

INSURER f

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE
ADOL
INSD

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MM/DO/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/ODIYYYYI UMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LtABIUTY

)E OCCUR 35873320 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

EACHCX:r.llRRENCF s  1,000,000
CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED

PRPMISFS (Pa ftrri*ran<-«tl
j  1,000,000

MED EXP (Anv ona oaraon) ,  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
,  1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
j  2,000,000

POLICY 1 1 LAJ LOC
OTHER: Agg $10M

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG
.  Included

X
$

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

73546634 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

(XIMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Pa acfklanll

J  1,000,000

ANYALJTO

HEOULED
TOS

BODILY INJURY (Par oarsonl s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

WONLY

X
SL
AL BODILY INJURY (Par acdriaml s

X X PROPERTY DAMAGE
(ParacfJdann %

$

A X UMBRELLA UA8

EXCESS UA8

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE 79861066 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
j  20,000,000

DED RETENTION S s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ ̂ ̂
ANY PR0PRIET0R/PARTNER/EXECUTIV6 I 1

II vM. dasoiba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A

71733182 9/9/2020 9/9/2021

V PER OTH-
^  -STATUTF FR

e.L. EACH ACCIDENT
J  1,000,000

E.L. D(SEA.SE.EAFMPlOYFF
J  1,000,000

E.L, DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT
J  1,000,000

B

A

E&O/CYBER

Directors 8> Officers

G46887694

81595534

11/30/2019

11/30/2019

11/30/2020

11/30/2020

GENERAL AGGREGATE

EACHOCC/GEN AGG

5,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramirtci Schadula, may ba attachad II mora tpaca la raqulrad)
It Is understood and agreed that NH Department of Health and Human Services is Included as an additional Insured as respects general liability as required by
written contract per the terms and conditions of Chubb form 80-02-2367 (5-07). All forms available for your review upon request.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE OESCRiBEO POLiCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSl Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human scr\'icc fields.
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Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Community Health Institute's mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire's
health care system by providing coordinated informadon dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents.
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2019
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Grant Thornton

OKAKT THORMTON LLP

75 Stats Smt. 13xFtoor

Boston. MA 02109

D ♦1 9177237000

P  ♦1 617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research & Training Institute, Inc., ( a nonprofit organization ), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2019, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

OT.COM Grant Ttiomton LLP is (tie U.S. metnber frm ot Grant Ttiomton IntemaUonel Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and eacti of iis member firms
are separate legal entities and are no) a wwidrnde partnership.
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Grant Th ornton

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

as of September 30, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Boston, Massachusetts

Augusts, 2020
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 98,563,248

Receivables for program work 45,130,388

Field.advances - program 25,188

Employee advances 184,277

Prepaid expenses 1,665,471
Total current assets 145,568,572

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 70,862

Other assets 36,945

Total assets $ 145,676,379

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings $ 59,600,173

Accrued vacation 1,464,584

Advances for program work 29,722,037
Total current liabilities 90,786,794

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions 54,585,599

With donor restrictions 303,986

Total net assets 54,889,585

Total liabilities and net assets $ 145,676,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

5
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30,2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Public support and revenue

Public support:

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Program income

Contributions

In-kind project contributions

Inherent contribution

Interest income

Total support and revenue

$  570,358.986

196,939,720

5,739.415

101,715,710

280,588

265,399

9,678,628

778,482

852,027
886,608,955

Expenses

Program services:

International programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other Expenses

Unallowable

Total other expenses

Total expenses

Change In net assets

Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

818,431,255

27,263,690

845,694,945

36,428,678

2,806,595

39,235,273

288,094
288,094

885,218,312

1.390,643

46,777

53,452,165

$  54,889,585

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

6
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2019

Program services Supporting services Total expenses

International

programs

Domestic

programs Total

Management

and general Fundraising 2019

Commodities $  544,556.844 $ $  544,556,844 $  1,421 $  1,471 $  544,559,736
Freight Costs 39,652.513 - 39,652,513 - - 39,652,513
Salaries 24,532.253 12,172,719 36,704,972 11,085,659 2,353,165 50,143,796
Consultants 14,119,065 5,791,456 19,910,521 2,090,816 379,622 22,380,959

Cooperating national salaries 49.761,390 244,621 50,006,011 658,261 - 50,664,272

T ravel 9,468,547 1,256,109 10,724,656 940,323 22,704 11,687,683

Allowance and training 7.052,172 46,360 7,098,532 236,650 250 7,335,432

Subgrants/Subcontracts 83.262,033 5,191,198 88,453,231 - 22,267 88,475,498
Equipment, material and supplies 4,555,167 231,216 4,786,383' 300,443 - 5,086,826
Other costs 31,154.814 2,330,011 33,484,825 20.713,133 24,233 54,222,191
Information Technology 146,193 - 146,193 387,941 2,883 537,017

NorvCommodity 277,348 - 277,348 - - 277,348

Quality Assurance 184,863 - 184,863 (548) - 184,315
Incidence 29,423 - 29,423 1,382 - 30,805

In-kind project expenses 9,678,630 - 9,678,630 - - 9,678,630
Depreciation - - - 13,197 - 13,197

Total expense $  818,431.255 $  27,263,690 $  845,694,945 $  36,428,678 $  2,806,595 $  884,930,218

The accompanying notes are an Integra! part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities;

Increase In net assets

Adjustments to reconcile increase In net assets to net cash

used in operating activities;

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in receivables for program work

(Increase) decrease in field advances - program

(Increase) decrease in employee advances

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase) decrease in other assets

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation

Increase (decrease) in advances for program work

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:

Acquisition of property and equipment

Inherent contribution net of cash acquired

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1.437,420

19,685

(26,553,124)

500,547

(79,414)

(766,262)

(22,609)

28,512,414

(210,088)

(18,507,594)

(15,669,025)

(52.342)

37.427,968

37,375,626

21,706,601

76,856,647

$  98,563,248

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019

NOTE A • ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. {the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11,1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development and the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. (Affiliates). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. Is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in
partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and income generation. World Education, inc's financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial position at June 30, 2019.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (PfSCM) was incorporated on February 14,2005 under the
laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1, 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship with PfSCM and
JSi Research & Training institute. Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM. PfSCM's financial data is
consolidated utilizing its fiscal year-end financial position at September 30, 2019.

JSi Research and Training institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the internal Revenue Code and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B CHANGE IN CONTROL

As previously referred to in Note A, the Organization achieved a controlling interest in the PfSCM during
fiscal year 2019. This transaction was effected without the transfer of consideration, and as such, the net
assets of PfSCM as of October 11. 2018, totaling $2,778,482, were contributed to the Organization and
were recognized, in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities as an inherent contribution.
Details of the transaction are as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,206,450
Accounts receivable 2,608,518
Other assets 774,153

Liabilities (40,810,639)

$  778,482
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September 30, 2019

NOTE C . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified and
reported as follows;

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the
Organization has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,483,206 at September 30. 2019.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all Investments in debt
securities (marketable investments) are measured at fair values based on quoted market prices in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the consolidated
statement of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.
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Revenue Recognition

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International Development
and the United States Department of Health and Human Services, as well as other private foundations and
non-governmental organizations. Revenues are recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying
expenditures that are reimbursable under the terms of the contracts, agreements or grants, or in
accordance with the grantor's restrictions.

Unrestricted and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made or the
gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Contributions received are recorded as revenue without donor restrictions, or with donor restrictions
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions are reported as restricted
support and are then released to without donor restrictions upon expiration of the time and/or purpose of
the restriction. Restricted support, whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period, is shown as
support without restrictions.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
is not a private foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions. Following administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 remain open years subject to examination and review.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education. Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax returns. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns are based on a
September 30 year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return based on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related to
the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

11
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2019 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $38,093,960 of amounts billed and $7,036,428 of amounts unbilled.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities, which revises the not-for-
profit financial reporting model. ASU 2016-14 provides for additional disclosure requirements and modifies
net asset reporting. The Organization adopted ASU 2016-14 effective in the fiscal year ended September
30, 2019. As a result of the adoption of ASU 2016-14, the Organization was required to reclassify its net
assets into two categories: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions. In
addition, the guidance requires enhanced disclosures about liquidity and expenses by both their natural
and functional classification, among other changes.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made. The amendments in this ASU assist entities in: (1)
evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions)
within the scope of Topic 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to
other guidance: and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. For contributions, an entity
should follow the guidance in Subtopic 958-605, whereas for exchange transactions, an entity should follow
other guidance (for example. Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers). Management has
adopted this ASU in fiscal year 2019 and there was no impact upon adoption.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which
is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing revenue recognition
guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Management is currently
evaluating the effect the provisions of this ASU will have on the consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The guidance in this ASU
supersedes the leasing guidance in Topic 840, Leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to
recognize lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases with terms
longer than 12 months. Leases will be classified as either finance or operating, with classification affecting
the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of activities. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the pending adoption of the new standard on the financial statements.
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NOTE D - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and rhanagement
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE E - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Accumulated

Cost depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements

$ 709,627 $  654,090 $ 55,537
45,680 30,355 15,325

$ 755,307 $  684,445 $ 70,862

Depreciation expense was $13,197 for the year ended September 30, 2019.

NOTE F - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following at September 30, 2019:

Deposits $ 132,401
Artwork - donated 36,945

169,346

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the date of gift.

NOTE G - ACCRUED VACATION

In accordance with formal policies, vacation was accrued at September 30, 2019 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. $ 1,464,584
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NOTE H - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2019:

Other - non-governmental
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation $ 13,272,043
Various Donors 10,225,618

Global Fund 4,048,678
Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 2,175,699

$  29,722,038

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash received from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE I - DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on September 10, 2018. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains in effect until May 31, 2020 and annually thereafter contingent upon performance. The loan is
collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during the year and as a result, as of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $0 and no interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended June 30, 2019.

John Snow, Inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1, 2019. Interest is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan is not collateralized. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, 2019, the outstanding balance is $0. No interest was incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2019 (See Note Q).

NOTE J - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization Is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment which might result from such an audit would be immaterial.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2019. Management believes that the co-borrower is current on the loan and
that its collateral exceeds the balance due (See Note Q).

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the United States Agency for International Development
(AID) on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2019, actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID
for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through December 31, 2014 and World Education, Inc. through
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June 30, 2018. Based on favorable past experience, management believes the effects of changes to the
overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE K NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

During the year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization received $46,777 of restricted donations. The
donations are restricted for use in specific programs and/or projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE L - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (an exempt organization) and John Snow, Inc. (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is President and Director of
both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, inc. The two companies bill each other at the
same rates that they bill the federal and state governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2019, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. $28,335,233 for consulting services (technical support). This amount is reflected under program
services - consulting totaling $15,311,055 and program services - other costs totaling $13,024,177 on the
consolidated statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
performed consulting services (technical support) for John Snow, Inc. totaling $7,658,189.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2019, JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. incurred $23,073,571 of overhead expenses
(supporting services), of which $9,292,686 was Its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred costs.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercial demand
loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31, 2020, which allows for borrowings up to
$6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security agreement with a first position lien on all corporate
assets of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. including assignment of promissory
notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate
based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2019 was
3.826%. At September 30, 2019, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan.

During the year, the Company had various accounts payable due from and to John Snow, Inc. At
September 30,2019, the accounts receivable balance is $0 and the accounts payable balance is $369,577.

World Education, Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions between World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the year
ended June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows;

Administrative and technical support $ 1,561,799

Other direct charges (including rent of $871,877) 1,375,414

$  2,937,213

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other.
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World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with John Snow, Inc. with a borrowing limit of up to
$1,000,000 (See Note L).

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30,
2019:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40%
owned by John Snow, Inc.) 5 686,384

$  686,384

NOTE M - RETIREMENT PLANS

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering
substantially all its employees. Employee contributions are voluntary. The Company contributes an amount
equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees
will receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be enrolled at
2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. The Plan was effective April 11, 1979. Pension expense
was $2,458,753 for the year ended September 30, 2019.

World Education, Inc. provides retirement benefits to substantially all employees under a plan. World
Education. Inc.'s contributions of 7% of employee salaries are used to purchase individual annuities.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were
$360,907 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE N-COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2019 through 2026. The.leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

During the year ended September 30, 2019, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$505,419. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2019 are:

2020 $ 423,198
2021 434,419
2022 450,718
2023 396,612
2024 155,324

Thereafter 326,716

$  2,186,987

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2019 was $877,010.
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NOTE O - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2019:

Income received % of total income

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 165,608,943 55.9%

NOTE P - IN-KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization receives donated materials and services consisting of commodities, facilities and
equipment, and services for use in its programs from overseas collaborative private voluntary organizations
and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and services totaled
$11,154,095 for the year ended September 30, 2019, and are reflected as in-kind project contributions on
the consolidated statement of activities and in-kind project expenses on the consolidated statement of
functional expenses.

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on certain U.S.
AID grants. During the year ended September 30, 2019, the following donated materials and services
received by the Organization have been used to fulfill matching requirements on active grants:

AIDSFree $ 6,334,951
Tanzania CHSS 301,174
Timor Leste RBHS 329,437
Ghana HIV/AIDS 112,512
Madagascar CCH 1,204,366
Ethiopia TRANSFORM 1,396,190
Laos 13,531
Uganda 50,015
Zimbabwe 3,250
OUTCOMES 1,235,558

Mozambique 173,111

$ 11,154,095

NOTE QS 3.IQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.
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The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2019, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 98,563,248
Receivables for Program Work 45,130,388

Total Financials Assets Available Within One Year 143,693,636
Less Donor Restricted Assets 29,722,037

Total Financial Assets Available to Management for General Expenditures
Within One Year $ 113.971.599

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through August 5, 2020, the date on which the.
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. The COVID-19 pandemic, whose effects first
became known in March 2020, is having a broad and negative impact on commerce and financial markets
around the world. The extent of the impact of COViD-19 on the Organization's operational and financial
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and
its impact on the Organization's funding agencies, employees and vendors, all of which at present cannot
be determined. Accordingly, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact the Organization's financial position
and changes in net assets and cash flows is uncertain and the accompanying consolidated financial
statements include no adjustments relating to the effects of this pandemic.
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Amy Moffett

JSI, d.b.a. Community Health Institute Amy_Moffett@jsi.com
501 South Street. 2"''Floor. Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3203

Education

University of New Hampshire

Bachelor of Arts, Psychology 1992, Magna Cum Laude
Minor, Social Work

Experience

JSI d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Manager, March 2019 to present

Oral Health Promotion Partner

Served as Project Manager and assisted with the planning, coordination and materials development for the SBIRT
(Screening, Brief Intervention and Referral to Treatment) initiative for Oral Health Care Providers. Worked to promote
and deliver training opportunities (both in-person and virtual) to providers and dental hygienist students as a strategy to
integrate screening into a standard oral health workflow to identify patients at risk of substance misuse. The training
builds knowledge and skills utilizing motivational interviewing techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

New Hampshire Chronic Conditions
Served as Project Manager to support the team as it facilitated efforts to improve referrals from health systems to DSME
programs, engaged pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management (MTM) for chronic conditions,
increased referrals and enrollment for patients at risk of developing diabetes and those with hypertension and/or high
blood cholesterol to NDPP or other CDC-approved programs. CHI supported the development and coordination of
multiple learning opportunities and strategies including delivering five successful learning opportunities to over 275
healthcare professionals, overhauling the NH Healthy Lives website, exploring issues relating to credentialing for
Community Health Workers and event planning.

Tick-Free New Hampshire
Provided Project Management for the campaign developed by CHI to educate the public about how to prevent tick
encounters and potentially Lyme disease. The digital behavior change campaign encourages preparation for outside
activity and checking for ticks. Primarily targeting parents of children aged 2 to 13, schools, providers and recreational
outdoors enthusiasts, the campaign includes www.TickFreeNH.org, multimedia PSAs, social media, print materials, a
clearinghouse, fundraising, and representation at trade events. CHI also worked with the University of New Hampshire
(UNH) to conduct population surveillance on knowledge, attitudes, and practices via prevention questions to the Granite
State (statewide) poll.

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems Prevention Messaging Campaign
Served as Project Manager to support the team in their research, evaluation, and implementation of a youth focused
prevention campaign aimed at reducing the prevalence of electronic nicotine delivery system use by minors in NH.
Research for this campaign consisted of peer group identification and validation in NH, the theories of social marketing
and behavior change and the social marketing campaign consisted of social media, traditional media, educational videos
for providers, and youth leadership as well as a state-wide media buy.

Climate and Health

CHI is contracted with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services to assist in the implementation of
new climate health adaptation programs, providing logistical support to assist in the facilitation of workgroup meetings
for the Climate and Health Advisory Council. CHI will also assist in the development and implementation of train-the-
trainer programs centered around tick-safe practices by leveraging educational materials from the Tick-Free NH,
Department of Public Health Services and CDC initiatives and utilizing best practices for adult learning. Finally, CHI
will be responsible for overseeing subcontracts with Antioch University New England as they provide technical
assistance to local communities to develop evidence-based public health plans and interventions centered around
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changing climate conditions. The culmination of this work will be the creation of a white paper by Antioch on the
subject of measuring community resilience to natural disasters.

NH Healthy Homes Lead Prevention Program
Provided logistical support and work plan oversight while assisting with content development for a series of eight videos
intended to inform and educate about the dangers of lead poisoning.

Concord Group Insurance, Concord, New Hampshire
PMO Lead, April 2016 — March 2019

Served as Information Services Project Manager for numerous software and data center implementations. Working with
major stakeholders, ensured that projects were successfully delivered on-time and within budget. Created comprehensive
status reports and end-of-project metrics to highlight all aspects of an implementation. Utilized Microsoft Project and
Microsoft Team Foundation Server (TPS) to track budgeted vs. actual hours, task progress and bug tracking. Responsible
for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the Help Desk that provided technical support to internal users, independent
Agents and policyholders. Hired, trained, and mentored new Project Managers and Support Specialists to guarantee
e.xceplional service to the entire company. Created detailed user guides and process documents intended for a wide
variety of technical and business users.

Concord Group Insurance, Concord, New Hampshire
Business Analyst, February 2011 - April 2016

Responsible for compiling business requirements and testing billing and claims implementations. Researched and
implemented a new online chat service to improve upon the existing customer service offered to Agents. Served as a
liaison between technical specialists and business users to provide production support meeting all required SLAs.

Certifications

Certified Scrum Master (CSM)

Trainings

Facing Addition in America: Tutorial on the Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs and Health
Understanding Substance Use Disorders

Facilitation-NH Listens

E-Cigarette Cessation among Adolescents: Lessons learned from Adolescent Tobacco Cessation

Computer Skills

Microsoft Office Suite 2016

Microsoft Project 2013
G Suite (Google)
Microsoft Team Foundation Server (TFS)
Confluence

lira

TeamGantt

Airtable

Communication Skills

User Guides and Training Manuals
Hiring/Supervising/Mentoring
Advanced Facilitation

Conflict Resolution

VOLUNTEER SERVICE

In Our Own Voice speaker - NAMI-NH

w
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Debra L. Love
JS! Research & Training Institute, Inc., d.b.a. Community Health Institute dlove@jsi.com
501 South Street. 2"^ floor. Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3310

Education

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire
B.S.. Business. Psychology and Health
Interdisciplinary Studies: 1985-1990

Institute of Children's Literature, West Redding, Connecticut
Diploma: Writing, 1994-1996

at-Home Professions, Fort Collins, Colorado

Certification: Medical Transcriptionist - March to August 2004

Certified NH Notary Public. 2008to Present

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Ojfice Manager. September 2015 to present
Project Manager. February 2009 to 2015
Project Coordinator. 2001 to 2009

NH Center for Excellence

Provide fiscal, logislicai, administrative and data management for a statewide technical assistance resource center for
evidence-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in
prevention, developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support
evidence-based practice, and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of
evidence-based practice. An expert panel endorses evidence-based practice selections, outcome measurement designs,
and the process by which promising practices may develop a base of evidence of effectiveness in New Hampshire.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatment Services (TATS)
Serve as Project Assistant for the NH TATS project. This contract serves as the hub for the NH Tobacco Resource
Center, which incorporates; 1) the NH Smokers' Helpline offering free and confidential counseling and services in
English, Spanish and Portuguese; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers' Helpline through a variety of traditional and
non-traditional media outlets; and 3) www.trytostopnh.org, a web-based resource for NH tobacco users and 4)
QuitWorks-NH a resource for NH clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco by providing them with a
single portal for referring their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment (www.quitworknsnh.org). This
initiative also includes the continued development of a consortium of health insurers who are willing to promote TTS-
NH to their subscribers directly and endorse QuitWorks-NH to their contracted health care providers.

Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC)
Provide support in the program evaluation of the CCDC program, which is expanding the substance use disorder
treatment capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the CCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by
breaking the criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non
violent offenders.

Qualit}' Improvement in Enhancing the System of Services for Children and Youth with Epilepsy
Provide logistical and administrative support to HRSA's Maternal and Child Health Bureau to assist Innovative
Strategies and Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in medically-underserved and rural areas for
children and youth with epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mechanisms to spread improvement
of the quality of services for children and youth with epilepsy (CYE) in the medical home and to strengthen the co-
management relationship between the medical home and the specialty network. The project aims are to: 1) Create a
three-session learning collaborative for grantees; 2) Analyze the results of the evaluation compiled from prior learning



collaboratives and design a strategy to incorporate continuous learning improvement; and 3) Conduct a comprehensive
analysis of the learning collaborative.

Injury Prevention Professiona] Trainings
Project Manager for the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention
Community Planning Group to provide planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for professional
trainings with the goal of supporting appropriate activities that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and
the public on the value ofevidenced-based injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths and the severity of
injuries as well as health care costs.

Monadnock United Way Community Investment Project
Logistics coordinator and administrative support to the CHI/Antioch University Center for Research on Psychological
Practice (CROPP) team, which will guide community organizations in the Monadnock region of NH through a strategic
planning process using a Collective Impact approach to identify collaborative strategies that will impact educational
attainment, child welfare and economic opportunity in the region. The CROPP team will facilitate listening sessions and
the CHI will be responsible for project management, qualitative data analysis and developing a Community Investment
Report. The team will share responsibility for the overall design of the planning process.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult's (SEAS) Conference on Aging. Oversight of this
project includes fiscal management, generation of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation of conference
expenses within, facilitation of planning committee meetings, coordination of logistics specific to the needs of the target
population, and providing SEAS with recommendations. Other scope of work includes building website with online
registration form; database creation; soliciting sponsors and exhibits; executing speaker and site contracts; coordination
of registration; oversight of graphic design; generating weekly reports for client and post-conference survey and
analysis. The Conference on Aging is an annual event whose goal is to provide information, education and training for
older adults that promotes awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration and independence.

Strategic Prevention Framework - SIC Region B, F, J & I
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategies to
prevention and reduce alcohol use and abuse among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiative is part of a statewide
Strategic Prevention Framework (SPF) funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
that engages communities in a five step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to
reduce high risk alcohol consumption and its harmful consequence.

National Health Service Corps (NHSC)
Data Coordinator for a major initiative to collect 'Uniform Data Systems' (UDS) information from all National Health
Service Corps sites across the country, which do not receive direct federal grants. The data collected describes the
financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC management decisions and
reports to Congress, as well as informing the health centers of their relative performance. The project involves extensive
data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to collect,
manage, and screen the data electronically.

New England Rural Health RoundTable (NERHRT)
Project Manager for the NERHRT. Responsibilities included maintaining database with dues paid members and with
lapsed memberships. Coordinated production of the newsletter and managed layout, and printing. Processed all mailings
including annual dues, conference announcements, board mailings, press releases, RFPs, and newsletters. Maintained
financial records. Communicated regularly with NERHRT researcher and web site manager. Answered the NERHRT
dedicated phone line and processed all inquiries from Board members, association members and individuals seeking
information about the association. Logistics coordinator for two annual retreats, a conference, and annual board meeting
and provided assistance with organization of annual symposium. Provided assistance to Executive Director.

Multistate Learning Collaborative
Administrative support for the RWJF-funded Multistate Learning Collaborative (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort
to improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcomes.
Manage two learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco
cessation among pregnant women and workforce development. Developed assessment tools and conduct public health
network capacity assessments to inform NH public health regionalization process.
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Karyn Dudley Madore

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute karyn_madore@jsi.com
501 South Street. 2'^ Floor. Bow, NH 03304 (603) 573-3305

Education

Yale School of Public Health's Climate Change and Health Certificate

Anticipated Graduation. July 2020

National Public Health Information Coalition, Marietta, Georgia
Certified Communicator in Public Health. 2015

University' of South Florida, Tampa, Florida
Graduate Certificate Degree. Social Marketingfor Public Health, 2014

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire

M.Ed. 1995

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, New Hampshire

B.S.. Marketing 1987

Experience

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Coniniunitj' Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
JSI-NH Communications Director. January 2010 to present
Provide overall strategic direction, administration, and management of health communications services to a variety of projects.
Oversee marketing and communication campaign development, print materials, and collateral as well as print material distribution
services to ensure that all materials and campaigns are of high quality, effective, and innovative.

NH Communications and Operations Director. August 1998 to September 2019

Highlights of Relevant Projects

NH Center for Excellence, Addressing Aicohol and Drug Misuse in NH: The Center for Excellence provides technical
assistance, disseminates data and information, and promotes knowledge transfer to support the effectiveness of communities,
practitioners, policymakers, and other stakeholders working to reduce alcohol and other drug misuse and related consequences in
New Hampshire. The Center is a project of JSl and staffed by consultants with technical assistance expertise in best practice
implementation, systems change, quality improvement, data and reporting, service-to-science, training and other related efforts.

NH Youth Binge Drinking & Opioid Abuse Prevention Campaigns (2016-prcscnt) Oversee the JSl-NH substance
use disorder communication project scopes including research, evaluate, and implementation. Currently the NH team
has the following active substance use disorder campaigns:

Binge-Free 603: What's Your Reason - a young-adult focused prevention campaign: Binge Drinking Reduction.

Doorways-NH - This statewide campaign promotes the nine Doorway locations, providing single points of entry for
people seeking help for substance use, whether they need treatment, support, or resources for prevention and awareness.
The regional Doorways ensure that help is always less than an hour away. In addition, 24/7 access to services is also
available by dialing 211.

Partnership for Drug Free NH (April 2020 - present)
Serve as Project Director to aid in the collecting of substance use disorder resources and the writing of website content
for the Partnership for Drug Free NH which exists to advance and amplify effective evidence-based prevention
messaging and strategies by providing current, accurate, and actionable substance misuse prevention materials.

Rhode Island Underage Drinking-Hosting Law (February 2020 - present)
Serve as Project Director to conduct formative research to inform a campaign related to underage drinking habits and the
provision of alcohol to underage persons by older friends and family members. This campaign aims to increase awareness about
the Rhode Island (Rl) Social Hosting law through social media and partner engagement awareness strategies, in the 20 R1 towns
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with highest alcohol consumption.

NH Lymc Disease Prevention Campaign Spring 2016 lo present
Serve as Communication Specialist to develop a grass-roots and marketing campaign for a private funder via the NH Charitable
Foundation in order to reduce tick encounters and cases of Lyme disease in NH. This project identifies priority audiences affected
by tick bites, best-practice outreach strategies, partner communication channels for grass-roots interventions, and effective
educational outreach materials to advance the understanding of the health risks of tick encounter, and how to prevent tick bites
and Lyme disease. Tick Free NH (TickFreeNH.org) includes the development and creation of a Public Service Announcement,
mass-media campaign, social media campaign, and website.

Wisconsin Human TrafTicklng Awareness and Prevention Campaign (February 2017 - December 2019)
Served as Project Director and as Communication Specialist Lead in the creation of a statewide Human Trafficking Awareness
and Prevention Campaign to inform the public that sex trafficking of Wisconsin youth under the age of 18 is an issue in urban,
suburban, rural and tribal communities throughout WI. This Campaign will strive to bring awareness to the indicators that a youth
is being sex trafficked or may be at risk of being sex trafficked; disseminate information about the risk factors that may make
youth more vulnerable lo being trafficked; and, implement an effective statewide media/social marketing campaign that reduces
demand and prevents sex trafficking of youth in Wisconsin.

National Healthy Start Branding and Communications Lead July 20J4 to March 2017
Served as the Branding and Communications Lead for the Maternal and Child Health Bureau's Supporting Healthy Start project
to provide capacity building assistance to 100 Healthy Start grantees to ensure program effectiveness in achieving the goals to
reduce infant mortality, reduce health disparities and improve perinatal health outcomes.

Rivier University, Division of Nursing and Health Professions, Nashua, New Hampshire
Adjunct Professor. 2015 to present
Courses: Undergraduate Level: Health Promotion, Marketing and Communication, Introduction to Public Health; Introduction to
Environmental Health; Graduate Level: Environmental Health, and Behavioral Health and Health Promotion

Selected Oral Presentations
• Anyone. Anytime. NH^^* - New Hampshire's Opioid Crisis Public Awareness Campaign", (August 2017) National

Conference on Health Communication, Marketing and Media, Atlanta, OA.
• Anyone. Anytime. New Hampshire Heroin Awareness Campaign. (June 2016). 24''* Social Marketing Conference,

Building on the Legacy: Forging New Paths. Clearwater Beach, FL.
• Dear Me New Hampshire: Low-cost Marketing with a Big Impact. (April 2012). Break Free. Alliance, Promising

Practices. New Orleans, LA.

Selected Honors | Awards
•  Wisconsin, We Need to Talk - Statewide campaign informing Wisconsin residents about youth sex trafficking -(2019)

Berreth Award - Bronze Medal. Excellence in Public Health Communication. NPHIC

•  Binge-Free 603 - Young Adult Binge Drinking Prevention Campaign in New Hampshire {201^) Berreth Award - Gold
Medal, Excellence in Public Health Communication. National Public Health Information Coalition.

•  Tick Free NH - Grass-Roots Lyme Disease Prevention in New Hampshire (2017) Berreth Award • Bronze Medal.
Corporate Health Marketing. National Public Health Information Coalition.

•  Anyone.Anytime.NH^^ Campaign (2017) Berreth Award - Honorable Mention, Corporate Health Marketing. National
Public Health Information Coalition and (2016). U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Ser\'ices. Office of the Surgeon
General, Facing Addiction in America: The Surgeon General's Report on Alcohol, Drugs, and Health. Washington, DC:
HHS, November 2016.

•  Start the Conversation New Hampshire (2013-2014) Start the Conversation Physician Toolkit (2014) Grady Award -
Cold Medal, Start the Conversation Billboard {2014) Grady Award - Silver Medal, Start the Conversation Posters
{2014) Grady Award - Bronze Medal, National Public Health Information Coalition.

•  Dear Me New Hampshire 2013-2014 Campaign Summary Report (2015) Grady Award - Bronze Medal.

Professional Associations | Memberships
Social Marketing Association of North America, Board of Directors
Public Relations Society of America, Member
National Public Health Information Coalition, Member
International Social Marketing Association (ISMA), Member
Society for Health Communication, Founding Member
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Martha Bradley, MS
JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
501 South Street, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3318

Martha_bradley@jsi.com

Education

Springfield College, Manchester, New Hampshire
M.S., Human Serx'ice Administration. May. 2001

University of New Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire
B.A.. Psychology, May, 1987

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Communit)' Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Project Manager. December 2002 to present
Areas of technical expertise include: Project management and implementation, health education and material development,
training, and qualitative research.

Wisconsin Human Trafficking Awareness and Prevention Campaign, April 2017 to present
Worked on team to create a campaign to inform the public that (1) sex trafficking of youth is an issue in urban, rural,
suburban and tribal communities throughout W1 (2) educate about the indicators that a youth is being or may be at risk of
being sex trafficked (3) disseminate information about the risk factors that make youth vulnerable to trafficking; and, (4)
implement a statewide media/social marketing campaign that reduces demand and prevents sex trafficking of youth.

NH Center for Excellence Addressing Alcohol and other Drugs: Best Practices in Reducing Alcohol and Drug
Problems

Worked on three projects for the Center which provides consultation, training, and technical assistance for substance
misuse prevention, substance use disorder treatment, continuum of care development, and integration of behavioral
health into primary care including needs assessment, system capacity assessment, strategic planning, and policy
recommendation.

NH Young Adult Prevention Messaging August 2016 to present
Responsible for developing the approach and methods for the exploratory and qualitative research resulting in a public
health campaign targeting young adults ages 21-25 who drink frequently and excessively.

New Hampshire SBIRT Initiative, December 2015 to present
Under funding for NH Charitable Foundation in partnership with the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation and NH Bureau of
Drug and Alcohol Services provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBFRT (Screening, Brief
Intervention, and Referral to Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients
at risk of substance misuse. Developed and implemented a variety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings,
onsite trainings and shared learning to help providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge
and skills utilizing motivational interviewing techniques with patients identified at greater risk.

NH Opioid Awareness Media Campaign: Anyone.Anythne.NH^''* August 2015 - September 2015
Responsible for conducting eight focus groups to understand current attitudes and beliefs about the use of naxolone,
understanding of the passage of a new law and knowledge of services available to assist an individual dealing with an
opioid addiction that informed the creation of the awareness campaign Anyone.Anytime.Nl-D^\

Partnerships for Quitlinc Sustoinability, August 2014 to present
A multi-year contract with the CDC to work with the state health department to develop strategy and material to engage
insurance professionals to consider cost sharing arrangements for Helpline services. Strategy based on model developed
by North American Quitline Consortium and key informant interviews with insurance stakeholders.

M.Bradley 1



Prediabetes Media Development and Placement Ser\'ices, March 2015 to present
Responsible for developing a statewide media campaign that encourages those at risk to enroll in a National Diabetes
Prevention Program which includes quantitative research of the target audience, audience testing, and message and
material development.

Child Abuse Needs Assessment, April-October 2015
Conducted a comprehensive needs assessment to increase knowledge on the factors that impact the competencies and
capacities of healthcare providers to provide special medical exams to child victims of suspected physical abuse.

Arsenic in Private Well Water, March-August 2015
Worked with the Dartmouth Toxic Metals Superfund Research Program to create intervention material to increase home
owners' readiness to voluntarily test their well water for arsenic. Developed message themes and conducted end user
testing to identify factors influencing home owners' interest in testing.

NH Immunization Marketing, June 2010 to present
NH Department of Health and Human Services, NH Immunization Program: Worked with community stakeholders
to research, develop, and implement a statewide marketing and awareness campaign aimed at increasing
immunization rates for the priority population.

NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program Data Utilization and Outreach Project, April 2012 to present
NH Department of Health and Human Services, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program: works to increase the
utilization of the EPHT's data portal and other communication tools by developing a communication plan consisting of
contemporary marketing and outreach strategies. Conducted formative research and wrote current,communication plan.
Conducted end user testing on a web-based tool to assess the probability of arsenic in well water.

Nashua Community Health Assessment, September 2013 to May 2014
Worked with client to develop appropriate protocols for focus groups with targeted segments of population, varying from
topic-specific issues, to general health issues. Facilitated 10 focus groups and wrote summary report of findings.

SHARE Needs Assessment, September 2013 to May 2014
Developed methodology for local non-profit needs assessment, covering five towns in Southern NH. Developed protocols
for focus groups and key informant interviews and developed needs assessment report.

Presentations

Presentation at IHA Health Literacy Conference: SBIRT: Talking with Your Patients about Substance Misuse, 2017
MofTltt Cancer Center: Cancer, Culture and Literacy Conference in 2008 & 2010
Presentation at the NH Conference for Adult Educators on Tobacco Literacy in NH: A Pilot Program for Young
Adults, February 2007 and abstract accepted at the ACCESS 08 Conference
Presentation at the Break Free Alliance Conference, Promising Practice to Eliminate Tobacco Related Disparities: the
Power of Communities, April 2012
Presented poster Break Free Alliance Conference on Supporting Healthy Practices in Child Care: Nutrition, Physical
Activity <& Tobacco Exposure, April 2012
Presentation at National Conference on Tobacco or Health, Engaging Low-Income Smokers in Tobacco Cessation via
Credit Counseling Programs, 2012

Other Education

National Institutes of Health, Office of Extramural Research, Protecting Human Research Participants, September 2009
New Hampshire Department of Safety, Division of Fire Standards and Training:

IS- 700: NIMS on Introduction, January 2009
IS-100: Introduction to ICS. January 2009
Public Information Office, April 2009

Homeland Security Exercise & Evaluation Program (HSEEP) Training Course, December 2008
Attended National Conference on Tobacco or Health, Minneapolis, MN, 2007
Attended World Tobacco Conference, Washington, D.C., 2006
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Completed Motivational Inien'iewing workshop at Health Education and Training Institute, Portland, ME, 2005
Attended National Tobacco Conference, Boston, MA, 2004
Completed Basic Skillsfor IVorking with Smokers, University of Massachusetts Medical School, 2002
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

Key Personnel

SFY22

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid

this Contract from this Contract

Debbie Love Project Manager $72,000 50% $36,000

Martha Bradley SHIRT Specialist $114,000 20% $22,800

Karyn Madore Project Director $126,500 20% $25,300

Amy Moffett Prevention Specialist $ 23% $14,720

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute



Key Personnel

SFY21

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Karyn Madore Project Director $120,500 14.89% $17,942.45

Martha Bradley Dental & Provider Trainer &

Partner Engagement

$100,921

16.90% $17,055.65

Debra Love Contract & Procurement Manager $63,000 5.65% $3,559.50

Amy Moffett Administrative Support $55,008 26.09% $14,351.59

$52,909.19

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute



SFY22

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Karyn Madore Project Director $120,500 14.89% $17,942.45
Martha Bradley Dental & Provider Trainer &

Partner Engagement
$100,921
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

I^ri A. Shtbln.m 29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 03301
CommlMioner 603-271-4501 I-800-852-3345 ExL450[

Fax: 603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.Rh.gov
Director

February 25, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councii

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
amend an existing agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health
Institute (Vendor #161611-6001), 501 South Street, 2nd floor, Bow, NH 03304, to provide professional
support services to the Department's Oral Health Program in order to implement activities funded through
federal grants, including access to preventive and reparative dental treathfient for individuals in the
statewide community-based and school-based oral health programs, by increasing the price limitation by
$37,700 from $2,605,345 to $2,643,045, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval with
no change to the contract completion date of August 31, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 13,
2019 (Item #12).

Funds are available in the following accounts for Slate Fiscal Year 2020 and 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY
SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Please see attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., to conduct evaluations
of the programs Implemented in the original agreement to help inform future efforts and sustainability
planning. The programs implemented are school-based and community-based oral health programs for
children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as well as uninsured families. Oral health
programs include evidence-based clinical sen/ices for caries prevention,screenings, and referrals for
indivdiuals with substance use disorders.

The following populations will be impacted from the effective date of this agreement through
August 31. 2021:
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His ExcaOency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

16.470 students in schools with forty percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;

91,440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;

9,500 people who use the emergency department for oral health care;

6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment; and

1.3 million people will be impacted-by oral health surveillance and professional
development activities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

This amendment will benefit the Department by providing evaluation results for school-based oral
health programs enhancement demonstration projects. The Department will evaluate the pilot project for
provison of dental care coordination from Emergency Rooms to community-based dental clinics and
expansion of use of substance abuse screening tools into dental clinics. The evaluation results will be
reported to federal funders and will be utilized to inform how future federal funding will assist with
protecting the oral health of New Hampshire citizens.

JSI Research & Training Institue, Inc (JSI) effectiveness in delivering services continues to be
measured through monitoring of the following performance measures:

Specific measures that JSI will provide for the purpose of this amendment include:

•  Determine through evaluation whether school-based and community based dental

programs will be extended.

•  Evaluations to determine sub recipient progress towards deliverables

•  Conduct evaluation of programs to help inform future efforts and to help inform

sustainability planning.

•  An evaluation plan and written report for all required activities in the contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the current programs that
provide oral health services to children, teens, pregnant women, and adults with low-incomes as well as
uninsured families living in New Hampshire will not be evaluated and sustanailbilty planning will not occur.

Area served: Stateviride

Source of Funds:

U.S. Department of Health arid Human Services, CDC, State Actions to Improve Oral
Health Outcomes , FAIN #NU58DP006487. CFDA #93.366.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services
Administration, Oral Health Worlcforce Activities. FAIN T12HP31859. CFDA #93.236.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, CDC, New Hampshire Breast & Cervical
Cancer, NH Comprehensive Cancer Control Program & Cancer Registry. FAIN
NU58DP006298. CFDA 93.898.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundt
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

cM
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Deparlntenl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Total Amount Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080502 $136,238 $0 $136,238

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080502 $100,000 $4,800 $104,800

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080502 $100,000 $4,800 $104,800

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080502 $0 $800 $800

Sub-Total $336,238 $10,400 $346,638

05-95-90-902010-22150000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90002215 $166,369 $0 $166,369

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
90002215 $181,369 $3,600 $184,969

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90002215 $181,369 $3,600 $184,969

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90002215 $15,000 $600 $15,600

Sub-Total $544,107 $7,800 $551,907
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Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Total Amount Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080083 $0 $0 $0

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080083 $0 $8,700 $8,700

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080083 $0 $8,700 $8,700

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90080083 $0 $1,450 $1,450

Sub-Total $0 $18,850 $18,850

05-95-90-90201 a-56590000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE CANCER - 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90080081 $0 $0 $0

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90080081 $0 $300 $300

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program Services
90080081 $0 $300 $300

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for

Program. Services
90080081 $0 $50 $50

Sub-Total $0 $650 $650

Page 2 of 3



Oral Health Statewide Promotion Partner Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902010-80110000'HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK GRANT - 100% FEDERAL
FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Total Amount Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90001030 $15,000 $0 $15,000

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90001030 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $45,000 $0 $45,000

05-95-90-902010-80110000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUITY SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH CAPACITY RURAL NH - 60.26% FEDERAL

FUNDS / 39.74% GENERAL FUNDS

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Total Amount Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

SFY 2019 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90072003 $420,000 $0 $420,000

SFY 2020 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000

SFY 2021 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90072003 $600,000 $0 $600,000.

SFY 2022 102-

500731

Contracts for Program
Services

90072003 $60,000 $0 $60,000

Sub-Total $1,680,000 $0 $1,680,000

Total $2,605,345 $37,700 $2,843,045
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Oral Health Promotion Partner

This 1" Amendment to the Oral Health Promotion Partner contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Departmenr) and JSI Research & Training Institute.
Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, (hereinafter referred to as "the ContractoO. a nonprofit with a
place of business at 501 South Street 2"" Floor. Bow. NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved" by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 13, 2019; (Item # 12). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or. terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and modify the scope of services to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.6, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,643,045

2. Exhibit A Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Work. Subsection 2.2., Paragraph 2.2.6. to
read:

2.2.6 Consult with the Department in early 2020 to:

2.2.6.1 Determine through evaluation whether school-based dental program contracts
will be extended.

2.2.6.2 Assist the Department with actions to preserve community-based services for
NH's low-Income, uninsured, and under-insured children and adolescents,
including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicald. The Contractor shall
conduct evaluations that include, but are not limited to:

2.2.6.2.1 Reviewing sub recipient progress towards deliverables.

2.2.6.2.2 Determining whether to renew sub recipient contracts.

2.2.6.2.3 Renewing sub recipient contracts upon Department approval.

3. Exhibit A Scope of Services, Section 2. Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3, Paragraph 2.3.6, to
read:

2.3.6 Consult with the Department in early 2021 to:

2.3.6.1 Determine through evaluation activities whether existing contract/agreements
for community-based dental programs will be extended.

2.3.6.2 Assist the Department in actions to preserve community-based services for
NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-insured children, adolescents, and
adults Including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor

JSI Research & Training Insiiluio. Inc. AmendmenI #1 Contractor initials

RFP-26i9-OPHS-21-ORALH<H.A01 Page 1 oU pate 2/14/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

shall ensure evaluations are completed and include, but are not limited to;;

2.3.6.2.1 Revlev/ing sub recipient progress tov^ards deliverables.

2.3.6.2.2 Determining whether to renew sub recipient contracts.

2.3.6.2.3 Renewing sub recipient contracts upon Department approval.

4. Exhibit A Scope ol Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8, Paragraph 2.8.5, to
read;

2.8.5 Conducting evaluations of programs to assist with informing future efforts sustainability
planning.

5. Modify Exhibit B Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment, by replacing Its entirety svlth
Exhibit B, Amendment #1.

6. Modify Exhibit B-2. Budget by replacing it in its entirely with Exhibit 8-2, Amendment #1.

7. Modify Exhibit B-3. Budget by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit 8-3, Amendment #1.

8. Modify Exhibit B-4. Budget by replacing it in its entirely with Exhibit 3-4. Amendment #1.

9. Add Exhibit B-5. Match Requirement Form.

JSl Research & Training institute. Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor initials 1/
RFP.2019.DPHS-21-ORALH^)1.A01 Page2of4 Date 2/14/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

■/i<?/zc
Date Name; Lisa Morris

Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b^ Community
y  Health Institute

February 14. 2020 [ JiQl
Dale Name: Katherine Robert

Title: Regional Director

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of New Hampshire . County of Merhmack on 2/14/2020 j^gf^re the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated at^ove.

—'
Signature of fpcta.ry-.Public or Justice of the Peace

L-oveNotgyu Faklio
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

DEBRA L. LOVE, Noia/y Public
My Co,nmission Expires: MyCon,nSsslceExpt«6.pt»sl.eri,i023

JSI Research & Training Instilute. Inc. Amendment
RFP-2019-DPHS.21-ORALH-01-A01 Page 3 OM



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dat) 5mt

Utleiy

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Inslllute, Inc.

RFP.2019.OPHS-21-ORALH-01.A01

Amendment A1

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Slate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows:

Source of Funds Year 1

(SFVIS)
Year 2

(SFY20)
Year 3

(SFY21)
Year 4

(SFY22)

2.1. 100% Federal Funds from

Centers for Disease Control &

Prevention, Preventive Health &
Health Services Block Grant,

CFDA #93.991, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN),
NB010T009285.

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $0

2.2. 39.74% Federal Funds from

Centers for Disease Control &

Prevention. Preventive Health &
Health Services Block Grant

CFDA #93.991. FAIN

NB010T009285 and 60.26%

General Funds

$420,000 $600,000 $600,000 $60,000

2.3. 100% Federal Funds from

Centers for Disease Control &

Prevention. State Actions to

Improve Oral Health outcomes
CFDA #93.366.- FAIN
NU58DP006487

$166,369 $184:969 $184,969 $15,600

2.4. 100% Federal Funds from

Health Resources & Services

Administration Grants to Stales

to Support Oral Health
Workforce Activities. CFDA
#93.236, FAINT12HP31859

$136i238 $104,800 $104,800 $800

2.5 100% Federal Funds from NH
Breast and Cervical Cancer,

$0 $9,000 $9,000 S1.500

mJSI Research & Training Institute

RPP •20tW)PH5-2t-ORAlH-A01

Rev.01X)S/19

Exhibit B. Amendment «1

Page 1 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

\

Comprehensive Cancer and
Cancer Registry Program,
CFDA #93.898. FAIN
NU58DP006298

TOTALS $737,607 $913,769 $913,769 $77,900

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, which includes an In-kind match of an amount
equal to a minimum of:

3.1.$54,495 for State Fiscal Year 2019

3.2. $41.920 for State Fiscal Year 2020

3.3. $41.920 for State Fiscal Year 2021

3.4. S320 for State Fiscal Year 2022.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the yearly required match that is identified in Section 3, is
in non-federal contributions either In cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA
project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and be approved
by the Department.

5. The Contractor shall provide bi-annual reports. Exhibit B-5 Match Report Form, of
itemized matching funds in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR
Part 75.306 no later than January 15th and June 15th.

6. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

7. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

7.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits B-l, Budget through Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1
Budget.

7.2.The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Stale by the
twentieth {20'") working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred during the prior month.

7.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the' Department in order to initiate payment. /.

JSI Research & Training Institute ExWfili S. Amendment f i Centrecior InlUals

RFP •201&OPHS-21-ORALH-A01 P»ge2e<3 Date 2/14/20

Rov. 01/06/19



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit B, Amendment # 1

7.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

6. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as

requested."

9. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

10. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to DPHSc0ntractbillln9@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

11.Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8. Amendment #1.

12.Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

13.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
Stale Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSl Resdarch & Training institute

RFP .2019.OPHS-2»-ORALH-A0t

Rev. 01/06/19
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Exhibit B-5

CARE COORDINATION SITE:

NAME:

Volunteer □ Contractor O

ADDRESS:.
CITY. ZIP:

TELEPHONE:

New Hampshire
Oral Health Program
Match Report Form

MATCnrrEAR:
Provider □

CONTRACT IN-KIND MATCH:
"MATCH RATE PER HOUR: DVolunteer

□Manager/Staff

□Provider /hour

/hour

/hour

MATCH DOCUMENTATION

DATE IN-KIND/CASH MATCH ACTIVITY # OF HOURS MATCH RATE* CONTRACT
MATCH

TOTAL

TOTAL;

Financial Manager/OfTicial signature

SS-2020-0PHS01 -ORALH

Mascoma Community Heallh

Date

Exhibit B-5
Contractor Initials Ml

Date :??|1c|2A



Jeffrty A. Meyers
Commissioner

Um M. Morris

01 rector

state OF NEWfHifeiStP§0!REli21 DPS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD, NH 03301

«03-27I^SOI I.600-8S2-334S exi.4S0l

FBx:603-27l-4d27 TOD Acce»: i>800*73S-2964
Mww.dhhs.nh.gov

February 5, 2019

1^

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the-Department of Health and Hunian Services. Division of .Public Health Services to
enter into an agreement with JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute.
Vendor #161611-8001. 501 South Street. 2'*' floor. Bow. NH 03304. to provide professional support
services to the Department's Oral Health Program In order to implement activities.funded through federal
grants, including access to preventive and reparalive dental treatment for individuals in the statewide
community-based and school-based oral health programs; conducting dental, screenings, fluoride
treatment and referrals for treatment In substance abuse treatment settings; as .well as workforce
development activities, in an amount not to exceed $2,605,^5. lo.^be effective upon date of Governor
and Executive Council approval, through August 31, 2021'.'74.37% Federal Funds, and 25.63% General
Funds. ^ .

Funds are available in the followirtg account(s) for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019. and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020. SFY 2021. and .SFY 2022. upon the availability and contiriued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, yvith authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further
approval from Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-45270000-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEAI,TH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY

Fiscal Year
Class / .

Account
Class Title .Job Number

Total Amount

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90001030 $15,000

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90001030 $15,000

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90001030 $15,000

Sub-Total ■ $45,000

.\
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05-95-90.902010-4S270000.HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY

Fiscal Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Total Amount

SFY2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $420,000

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $600,000

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $600,000

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90072003 $60,000

Sub-Total $1,680,000

05-95.90-902010.221 SOGOO-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY

Fiscal Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Total Amount

SFY 20.19 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080502 -  $136,238

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080502 $100,000

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080502 $100,000

Sub-Total $336,238

05-95-90-902010-221SOOOO-HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND.HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUITY

Fiscal Year
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

■ Total Amount

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program" Services 90002215 $166,369

SFY 2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90002215 $181,369

SFY 2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90002215 $181,369

SFY 2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90002215 . $15,000

Sub-Total $544,107

Grand Total $2,605,345
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for Community Health Institute (CHI) to provide professional
support services to the Department of Health & Human Services, Division of Public Health Sen/ices, Oral
Health Program (OHP) in order to implement activities funded through general funds arxJ federal grants
that include: school-based and community-based oral health programs; dental hygienists screenings,
fluoride treatments and referrals to services for individuals in substance use disorder treatment programs;
assisting with,project management for the Health Resources and Seoi'i'ces Administration Oral Health
Workforce grant; assisting with activities that will increase the reach of school-based oral health programs
serving schools v^^th student participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch program;

• and assisting with the Third Grade Survey.

This contract will lead to gains in value for oral health services in New Hampshire (NH) through
expanding the reach of programs to serve populations who experience disparities in access to and
outcomes related to oral health care (e.g.. schools with fifty percent (50%) or more students receiving
Free and Reduced Lunch; adults in substance abuse treatment; adult Medicaid beneficiaries, etc.). The
contract funding may only be used to support the delivery of evidence-based and cost-effective oral
health services and may not be used for other low-value services.

Furthermore, this contract will support the completion of the NH Third.Grade Survey which will
provide surveillance data to evaluate the impact of services and to help inform program planning. The
following health outcomes will be achieved through this contract;

1) reduce the proportion of children who have dental caries in their primary or permanent teeth;

2) reduce the proportion of children who have untreated dental decay;

3) reduce the proportion of adults with untreated dental decay;

4) increase the proportion of children and adults who have used the oral health care system in
the past year; and

5) increase the number of children who have received denial sealants on their molar teeth. This
contract wnll benefit the children and adults of New Hampshire through increasing access to
the highest value oral health seivices In their local communities.-

in NH. thirty-five percent (35%) of third" grade students have dental caries with higher rates of
decay among children who are lower income and in areas of the state with (ess access to oral health
professionals. While untreated decay has decreased overtime, from twenty-two percent (22%) in 2001 to
eight" percent (8%) itt 2014. disparities persist among those children who lack access to treatment, with
similar higher rates among those children who are lower income and In counties with a shortage of dental
professionals."

In Strafford County and Coos County, fourteen percent (14%) of children have untreated decay
compared vwth just four percent (4%) of children In Rockihgham County. Among adults in NH. there has
t>een a steady increase in the rates of emergency department visits for non-traumatic dental conditions
from 9.000 visits in 2000 to 16,000 visits in 2009.
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The following performance standards will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement;

•  Develop and maintain a system for establishing and monitoring agreements for the delivery

of school oral health programs and community based'oral health program;

•  Develop and- implement a training plan and curriculum for oral health and other health
professionals which shall include:

a. Implementation of Screening. Referral, and Brief Interventions related to substance-
abuse disorders;

b. Use of the Prescription Drug fyionitoring Program for practice.improvement; and
c. Pain management and dental care coordination for those presenting at the Emergency

Department for non-traumatic dental conditions.

•  Develop and implement a communications plan and related materials to increase awareness
about the value and impact of school oral health services and community water fluondation.

The following populations will be reached from the effective date of this agreement through
August 31, 2021:

•  16.470 students in schools with forty percent (40%) or more Free and Reduced Lunch
Program;

•  91,440 people served by Federally Qualified Health Centers in NH annually;-

•  9,500 people who use the emergency department for oral health care;

«  6,000 NH Medicaid Insured Adults that receive Substance Use Disorders treatment; and
I

•  1.3 million people will be impacted by oral health surveillance and professional development

activities that are statewide and intended to change systems of care.

CHI was selected for this project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals
was posted on the Department of Health and Human Sen/ices' web site from October 9. 2018 through
November 6. 2018; The Department received one (1) proposal. The proposal was reviewed and
scored by a team of individuals with program specific knowledge. The review included a thorough
discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposal. The Score Sheet is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue,
after June 30. 2019, and the.Department shall not be liable.for any payments for services provided after
June 30, 2019, unless and until an appropriation for these services hds been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 and SPY 2022-2023 biennia;

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, children, teens, pregnant
women, and adults from low-income, uninsured families living in New Hampshire may not receive oral
health care services. NH residents may seek relief of infection and dental pain in hospital emergency
departments where treatment is costly, does not resolve the dental problem, and exposes them to pain
medications that could have been avoided with appropriate and timely dental treatment.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds:

•  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC). Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant, Oral Health
Program, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) NB010T00920S, Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.991. 60.26% Federal Funds and 39.74%
General Funds.

•  U.S; Department of Health and Human Services. CDC, Oral Health Worldorce. FAIN
#NU56DP006487. CFDA #93.366. 100% Federal Funds.

•  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services
Administration, Oral Health Workforce Activities. FAIN T12HP31859. CFDA #93.236.

100% Federal Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this, program.

Re^ctfuHy submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deixirlmenl of HcoUh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities end families
in prouidiiig opfjorluiiiliet for cili^cn* <0 ochiew health und. indcfxndence.
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Summary ̂coring Sheet

Oral Health Promotion Partner

RFPName

RFP-2019-0

RFP

PHS.21-ORALH

Number ■Reviewer Names

1.
Sareb Finne. Eprdemtc & Admin
Hhh Oala. OPHS

Bidder Name

JSl Research and.Training Institute, Inc.

PaJs/Fail Maximum

Points

Actual

Points
. Ellen Chase-Lucard, Financial

- Admin. OPKS

490 422

Monica OeRico, Chronic Disease
Prog Speoalisi 1 OPHS .

2. - ' ^ Hope Saitmarsh. Oral Health
Program Director. DPHS

3.. .



Subject: OthI Health Promotion PMtneffRFP-20l9-DPHS-2l-QRALH^
FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcrtloo S/8/IS)

-Notice: This Bgreemeni and all ofits atuchmcnis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for opproval. Any informotion thai is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the controct

"  ' agreement
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health ond Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

;Sl Research &. Training Institute. Inc. d/b/e
Community Health Institute

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, V* Floor
Bow.NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)573-3300

i.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-45270000

05-.95-90-9020IO-22I50000

1.7 Completion Date

August 31, 2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$2,605,345

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White. Director

1.10 Slate Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor St 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

jonalhan Stewart. Regional Director

1.13 Acknowlcd of New HampshireCouniy of Mcrrimack

On Febnj*f)'-4. 2019 _ before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Idcniined in block 1.12. or saiisfoclorlly
proven'to be the person, whose name is signed in block I. II. and acknowledged that s/he e.xecuted this document in the capacity
indicftted io.t;tcy.!< I .l'2.

i;l-3il Signature ofNotary PuUit/dr Justice of the Peace

jsctir •_

^  .-My.Conim!s3kih&9raGoptambcr5,2023

1.14 Stnie Agincy ̂ gnature . 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

L-i6A ffvCRtui, OPtii
1.16 Approval by (he N.H. Dcponmcni of Administration, Division of Personnel Of applicable)

By: Director. On:

1.17 Approval by ihf^ttomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicabU)

1.18 Approvalmy the Goyvrnor/Ind Executive Council (i/appllcoble)

By: On:.

Page I of4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Suie of New Hompshire. acting
through the ogency ideniincd in biock I.I ("State"), engages
contractor idcnlified in block l.3.("Contractof") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services').

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.) Notwiihsiartding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stole of New Hampshire, if
applicable, (his A^eemcnt, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder. shall become effective on the dale (he Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 f f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EITcciivc Dale, all Services performed by the Contiacior prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liabiUry to the
Contractor, including without limiiaiion, any obligBiion to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by (he Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of (he State hereunder, including,
without limiloilon, the continuance of payments hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appr^iation
of funds, and in no event shell the State be liable for any
poyments hereunder in excess of such available epprcprtaicd
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to laminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such tcmiihaiion. The State
sholl not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unovpilable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated hacin by refcrehce.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Conimcior for oil
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Coniroctor in the
performance haeof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to (he Contractor other than (he contract
price.

Page

5.3 The Stale reserves (he right to olTsct from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreernent
those liquidated amounts required or pamittcd by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpeaed circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made haeunda. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8. ,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all siaiutes. laws, regulations,
and orders of fedtrol, state, county or municipal authoriiies
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contrvctor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
oids and services to ensure that pasons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing.and speech, can
communicate "with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, ihc Contractor

shall comply'wiih all opplicabte copyright laws.
6.2 During the (am of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminote ogainsi employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, aced. age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Controctor shall comply with oil the
provisions of Executive Orda No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), os supplemented by the
regulations of the United Sioies Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations end guidelines
as (he State of New Hampshire or the United Stales issue to
Implement these reguloiions. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Coniroctor'a books, records and accounts for the purpose of

- ascertaining compliance with-oll rules,-regulations ond ordas.
and the covenants; terms and conditions of this'Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Controctor sholl 'at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all pasonnel engagrt in the Services sholl be
qualified to paform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and olhawisc authorized to do so unda all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless othawisc authorized in writing, during the term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afla the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or oiha person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined elTori to
perform the Savices to hire, any person who is o Sujte
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agrcemeni. Thii provision shall survive lerminaiion of ihij
Agreemeni.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's represenlative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreundcr

("Even! ofDefauli");

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services'satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any othef covenani, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may lake any one, or more, or.all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default end requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser spccificaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event ofDefauli is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the.Contracior a wrinen notice specifying the Event
ofDefauli and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that (he portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during (he
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations (he State may owe to
(he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of DefBuli; antVor
8.2.4 treat (he Ajgreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. OATA/ACCESS/CONFIOENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things develop^ or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or dcvclop.ed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representaiiws, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2-AII data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreemeni, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confideniialiry of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 • A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Stale.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
(his Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not Inter than fiflcen (15).days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail at! Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

tl. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor Is in all
respects an independent contractor, and Is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTtcers, employees, ogents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACrS:
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer ony
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State, None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Stale.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold hannlcss (he Slate, Its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers end employees, and any-and all claims.
I labilities or penalties asserted against the State. Its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
cloimed to arise out oO (he acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the Slate, which immunity is hereby
reserved to ihe.State. This covenant in paragroph 13 sholl
survive the icrminalioo of this Agreement.

' 14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole e.tpense, obtain and
maintain in force, and sholl require any subcontractor or ' •
assignee to obtoin and mainioin in force, (he following -
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liabitiry insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S i .OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of toss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shell
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State ofNcw Hampshire by the N.H. Department'of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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] 4.3 The Conrrector shall furnish lo ihe Contrecting Officer
ideniified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniric8ie<s)

of insurance for all Insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Concraciing Officer.,
idcnliried in block 1.9. or his or her successor, cenificatefs) of
insurance for all rencwalfs) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dale of each of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any renewals lhacof shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceriificatefs) of
insurance shell contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer ideniifted in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modincation of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contiactor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Worktrs' Comptnsai'ion ").
15.2 To the extent the Coniraaor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shell
mainuiin, and require any subconiractpr or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the pason proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
fijmish the Contracting Officer ideniifted in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 28I'A and any
applicable renewal(s) (hereof, which shall be attached and arc •
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or bcnefii for Convactor, or
any subcontractor or employee ofCo'ntractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compenseiioh laws in connection with the performance of the
Servj^ under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State lo
enforce any provisions hereofafler any Event ofDefauli shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Oefauii. or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event ofOefouli shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale to en force each and all of the
provisions hacdf upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parry
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified moll, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post OfFlce addressed to the parties at-ihe addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an Instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only afler approval of such
omendmeni. waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of (he State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under .the circumstances pursuant to
State lew, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State ofNew Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the pa/lies to express their mutual
intent, end no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
ve for reference purposes only, and the wtrrds contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT Core incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
(his A^eemeni a/e held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall '
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreemqii and
understanding between (he parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary,' no services
shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be liable for
any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and until an
appropriation for these senrices has been received from the state legislature
and funds encumbered for the SFY 2020-2021 blennia.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall provide Oral Health Promotion Partner (OHPP) services
for the Department in order to implement activities for NH residents. Including
individuals in Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment and/or recovery centers.
The Contractor shall ensure activities include, but are not limited to;

2.1.1. Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with school-based
and comrriunity-based dental programs..

2.1.2. Developing sub recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers
(o provide dental screenings, fluoride treatments and referrals to
services for individuals in substance,use disorder (SUD) treatment
programs.

2.1.3. Assisting the Department with project management for Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Oral Health
Workforce grant. Including activities related to development and
delivery of education in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas
(DHPSAs) for dentists on the. use of the Prescription Drug
Monitoring Program (PDMP), integration of Screening. Brief
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and
emergency department physicians, prescribing for dental pain
management.

JSI Research a Training Inslitute, Inc
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2.1.4. Assisting the Department vyith activities that will increase the reach
of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch
(FRL) program.

2.1.5. Assisting the Department with the Third Grade Survey.

2.2. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
applications from sub recipients to "provide school-based oral health services
in order to increase access to statewide preventative services to low-Income,
uninsured and under-insured children and adolescents, including those
enrolled in NH fi4edicaid. The Contractor shall:

V

2.2.1. Assist the Department with developing and' Implementing an
unbiased process tool for selecting sub recipients to enter into

■contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver school-based
oral health services.

2.2.2. Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

.2.2.3. Ensure the Department is included In the selection of sub recipients.
2.2.4. Create contracts/agreements with selected sub recipients for

Department approval to provide services through August 31, 2020
with options to renew services for up to three (3) additional years.

2.2.5. Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

2.2.6. Consult with the Department in early 2020 to:
2.2.6.1. Determine whether school-based dental program contracts

will be extended.

2.2.6.2. Assist the Departrrient with actions to preserve community-
based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-
insured children and adplescents. including those enrolled
in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor shall:
2.2.6.2.1. Review sub recipient progress towards

deliverables.

2.2.6.2.2. Determine whether to renew sub
recipient contracts.

2.2.6.13. Renew sub recipient contracts upon
Department approval.

2.3. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop and solicit
JSI Reseorch & Treining Instilulo. Inc. _
d/b/a Community Heallh Institute Exhibit A Contrector Iniliels
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applications from sub recipients to provide community-based oral health
sen/ices in order to increase access to statewide preventative sen/ices to low-
income. uninsured and under-insured children, adolescents, and adults
including those enrolled in NH Medicaid. The Contractor shall;

2.3.1. Assist the Department with developing and irrjplementing an
unbiased process for selecting sub recipients to enter into
contracts/agreements with the Contractor to deliver community-
based oral health services.

2.3.2. Provide the draft process for selecting sub recipients to the
Department for final approval prior to publication.

-2.3.3. Ensure the Department is included in the selection of sub recipients.

2.3.4. Create contracts/agreements v/ith selected sub recipients for
Department approval to provide services through August 31. 2021
vMth options to renew services for up to two (2) additional years.

2.3.5. Execute Department-approved contracts/agreements with selected
sub recipients.

2.3.6. Consult with the lOepartment in early 2021 to:

2.3.6.1. Determine whether existing contract/agreements for
community-based dental programs will be extended.

2.3.6.2. Assist the Department in actions to preserve community-
based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-
insured children,- adolescents, and adult's including those
enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid. The Contractor shall:

2.3.6.2.1. Review sub recipient progress towards
deliverables.

.2.3.6.2.2. Determine whether to renew sub

recipient contracts.

2.3.6.2:'3. Renew sub . recipient contracts upon
Department approval.

t

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure applicants complete an organizational
performance self-assessment, that includes but is not limited to the following

JSl Research S Training Iftttiluto. Inc.
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elements;

2.4.1. Organization Maturity.

2.4.2. Current plans for expansion or contracting.

2.4.3. Staff levels.

2.4.4. Staff training experience.

2.4.5. Vision/Mission.

2.4.6. Recover Support Services.

2.4.7. Populations Served.

2.4.6. Governance and Administration.

2.4.9. Human Resources.

2.4.10. Volunteers/Interns;

2.4.11. Financial Management.

2.4.12. Organizational Management.

2.4.13. Risk Assessment.

2.4.14. Procurement/Monitoring.

2.4.15. Performance/Evaluation.

2.5. The Contractor shall implement and administer contracts/agreements ywth
dental centers to perform screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment centers that Includes the utilization
of Certified Public Health Dental Hygienists in recovery centers who provide:

2.5.1. Screenings.

2.5.2. Decay management and desensitizatipn services.

2.5.3. Patient education.

2.5.4. Referrals for treatment in dental clinics and offices.

2.6. • The Contractor shall assist the Department Nvith project management for
HRSA Oral Health Workforce grant. Including activities related to
development and delivery of education in Dental Health Professional
Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) for dentists on the use of the Prescription Drug
Monitoring Program (PDMP). integration of Screening, Brief Intervention and-
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT), and for dentists and emergency department
physicians, prescribing for dental pain management; which includes, but is
not limited to: •

2.6.1. Ensuring an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-trained dental
JS) Research & Training inslilule. Inc. ^ j
d/Wa Commurxfy Health Institulo Exhibit A Contractor (nitiaty^ (J
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professional to develop and implement academic detailing sessions
for dentists in DHPSAs, three (3) times per year.

2.6.2. Providing logistical support for three (3) POMP trainings per year for
- dentists in DHPSAs..

2.6.3. Providing logistical support for up to six (6) dental pain management
trainings between 6/30/2020 and 6/31/2021, for dentists and
emergency depadmenl physicians In DHPSAs.

2.7. The Contractor shall work with dental providers to establish workflows for
screening, which includes but is not limited to:

2.7.1. Identifying who Nvill be screened.

2.7.2. Idenbfying screening tools to be utilized.

2.7.3. Method of screening.

2.7.4. ' Identifying who will be responsible for managing the screening.

2.7.5. Identifying the Individual responsible for conducting the brief
intervention.

2 J.6. Determining referral networks in place and if it includes a range of
providers and modalities.

2.7.7. Ensuring confidentially for referrals.

2.7.8. Determining follow-up processes for positive screens.

2.6. The Contractor shall assist the Department-with activities to increase the
reach of school-based oral health programs serving schools with student
participation rates of 50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL)
program through 8/31/2021. The Contractor shall ensure activities include,
but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Supporting bi-annual and quarterly convenings of Work Group
partners, which shall be named no later than thirty (30) days from
the contract effective date. The Contractor shall:"

2.8.1.1. Ensure invitations are sent to each member at least 30
days prior to each convening.

2.8; 1.2. Ensure adequate meeting space is reserved for each
convening.

2.8.1.3. Host a WebEx meeting for each convening, ensuring work
group members with barriers to attending can attend.

2.8.1.4. Scribe meeting minutes and-ensure minutes are provided

JSI Resoarch & Training Inslllule. Inc. ^ ,
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to the Department for approval.

2.8.1.5. Provide other meeting logistics as needed.

2.8.2. Developing a sustainabilily plan for school based oral health
services during PY llhat outlines strategies for leveraging other,
resource opportunities In order to reduce reliance on federal funds.

2.8.3. Developing and Implementing Communlcatioris Plans that include
. but are not limited to:

2.8.3.1. A plan that supports school-based' program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

2.8.3.2. A plan for target audiences, including but not limited to:

2.8.3.2.1. Legislators.

2.8.3.2.2. Decision makers.

2.8.3.2.3. Medicaid officials.

2.8.3.2.4. . Government offtcials.

2.8.3.3. A plan to guide efforts for promoting:

2.8.3.3.1. The benefits and effectiveness of school-
based oral health activities.

2.8.3.3.2. Increased participation by school and children
in these senrices including a minimum of three
(3) communications materials. •

2.8.3.4. Identification of:

2.8.3.4.1. Target audiences, including but not limited to.
parents, caregivers, medical and dental
providers, school personnel, and decision-
makers.

2.8.3.4.2. Key messages for each target audience;

2.8.3.4.3. Proposed communication channels;

2.8.3.4.4. A dissemination timeline;

2.8.3.4.5. Partner roles in plan implementation.

2.8.4. Including CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by
the Work Group in sub-recipient contracts for eligible school-based

, dental programs.

2.9. The Contractor shall svork with the Department during PY 2 to prepare for the
Basic Screening Survey (BSS) for New Hampshire Third Graders in order to

JSI Research & Training )ns!lluie. Inc. ^
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update The New Hampshire 2013-14 Healthy Smiles - Healthy Grovrth Third
Grade Survey to be conducted during PY 3. The Contractor shall;

2.9.1. Work with the Department to develop a Memorandum of
Understanding/Agreement with dental hyglenists (preferably
CPHOHs) to conduct the screenings of third grade students In
accordance with 6SS requirements and In coordination with a
survey expert from the Association of State and Territorial Dental
Directors (ASTDD) and the OPHS Chronic Disease Section
.Epidemiologist.

2.9.2. Work with the Deparlment to convene the training session for the
dental hygienists. prior to the 2019-2020 school year.

2.9.3. Collect surveillance data during PY 3 from the BSS hygienists and
sharing the collected screening data with the Department. The
Contractor shall ensure:

2.9.3.1. Screening data does not include personally identifiable
information (Pll).

2.9.3.2. Once parental consent forms are completed, children are
screened and evaluated for dental needs and either

referred for services or provided services onsite, if the
school has an onsite option available.

2.9.3.3'. Children and their parents are made aware of dental
sealants, their value and availability of sealants through the
school program and as well as the BSS and the importance
of oral health to overall health.

2.10. The Contractor shall conduct a kick-off meeting with the Department to
discuss the work plan specified, performance measures and report formats,
all of which are specified in Exhibit A-1 Work Plan, within thirty (30) business
days of the contract effective date.

2.11. The. Contractor shall meet with the Department on a bi-weekly basis to
discuss meeting and call schedules, activities, budgets and/or performance
measures.

2.12. .The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to assess joint progress
toward objectives and activities on a semi-annual basis in order to assist the
Department with sharing products related to grant activities, which may

JSI Research & Trair^inQ Instiiule, Inc
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include but are not limited to;

2.12.1. Meeting agendas and minutes.

2.12.2. Written reports.

3. Project Management

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure project management best practices are
documented and performed throughout the term of the contract to start,
organize and prepare, for the project, carry out project work, and formally
close out the project.

3.'2. The Contractor shall ensure Project Management activities include, but are
not limited to:

3.2.1. Project Initiation and Planning

3.2.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct a project Kick Off Meeting,
within five (5) business days of the contract effective date
which addresses topics and activities that include but are

^  not limited to:

3.2.1.1.1. A review of the project scope as defined in the
contract.

3.2.1.1.2. A review of the initial Project Schedule and
Work Plan as identified in Exhibit A-1 Work

Plan.

3.2.1.1.3. A presentation on, and discussion of, project
management best practices to t>€ utilized.

3.2.1.1.4. A review of the templates that will be utilized
for each aspect of the project management
cycle, including but not limited to:

3.2.1.1.4.1. Monthly Project Reports

3.2;i.1.4.2. Issues Log.

3.2.1.1.4.3. Decision Log.

3.2.1.1.4.4. Risk Register.

3.2.1.-1.4.5. Change Request Log.

3.2.1.1.4.6, Deliverable Acceptance Log.

3.2.1.2. The Contractor shall submit an updated Project Schedule
that will be the basis for the final approved Baseline Project
Schedule within five (5) business days of the Project Kickoff

dUal
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Meeting, which consists of;

3.2.1.2.1. Project milestones.

3.2.1.2.2. "Activities.

3.2.1.2.3. Deliverables.

3.2.1.2.4. Task dependencies.

3.2.1.2.5. Due Dates.

3.2.1.3. The Contractor shall establish the Project Repository that
is comprised of all project related documentation and
ensure access is provided to appropriate Department
users.

3.2.2. Project Execution. Monitoring and Controlling

3.2.2.1. The Contractor shall schedule weekly, unless an alternative
frequency is approved by the Department. Project Status
Meetings following the Project Kickoff Meeting.

3.2.2.2. The Contractor shall provide hotes from the Project Status
Meetings to the Department within three (3) business days
from the date of each Project Status Meeting.

3.2.2.3. The Contractor shall schedule a Daily Huddle, lasting less'
than thirty (30) minutes in duration, during the most
complex or challenging stages of the' project upon
Department request.

3.2.2.4. The Contractor shall maintain the baseline and current

Project Schedules using .a project management software
solution that:

3.2.2.4.1. Enables schedule of analysis.

3.2.2.4.2. Recalculates dales based upon approved
changes.

3.2.2.4.3. Tracks, variances to the approved baseline.

•3.2.2.5. The Contractor shall provide a written Monthly Progress
Report that contains a summary of the sub recipient's
activities, which include but are not limited to:

3.2.2.5.1. Work accomplished during the reporting
period.

3.2.2.6.2. Updated Project Schedule identifying

RFP.2019.OPHS-21-ORAI.H PegoSof 13 Data •

JSI Research) & Training institute, (nc.
d/b/a Comnnunity Health Institute Exhibit A Controctor Irvtiat



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit A

variances to baseline.

3.2.2.5.3. Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting
those issues that require irnmediate
escalation to ensure timely resolution.

3.2.2.5.4. A list of - the highest priority risks, risk
ownership and status of the mitigation plan for
each.

3.2.2.5.5. Planned work for the next reporting period.

3.2.2.5.6. Requests for Department assistance
necessary to ensure successful project
delivery.

3.2.3. Project Closing

3.2.3.1. The Contractor shall schedule and conduct a Final Project
Meeting during which the Acceptance Log will be presented
for Department approval and sign-off.-

3.2.3.2. The Contractor shall transfer the project repository,
including all documentation falling withiri state ownership,
to the Department.

3.2.3.3. The Contractor shall be available for a Lessons Learned

session facilitated by the Department. *

4. Reporting

4.1. By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide the number of sub-
recipient contracts/agreements in place for;

4.1.1. School-based dental programs.

4.1.2. Community-based dental programs.

•  4.2. By August 31st each year, the Contractor shall provide reports that include
only aggregated, data that pertains to how ma.ny individuals were screened
and/or treated along with other data that does not include any personally
identifiable information (PH). The Contractor shall provide reports that Include,
but are not limited to;

4.2.1. Annual School-Based Program Report Form.

4.2.2. Annual Community-Based Report Form,

4.2.3. An annual narrative report that includes performance measures .for
oral heath visits by dental hygienists from sub-recipient dental centers

JSl Research & Training Instituie, inc
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to adults at SUD treatment centers.

4.2.4. An annual performance report for all continuing education sessions
delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs.

4.2.5. An annual narrative report describing meetings Of the Work Groups
for School-Based Oral Health Services Enhancement, that includes

a sustalnability plan.

4.2.6. An annual narrative report describing the Communications Plan and
products created and activities implemented from the
CommunicatiorSs Plans for the school-based oral health programs
and community water fluoridation activities..

4.2.7. For School-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.7.1. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

4.2.7.2. The number of School-Based Oral Health Services site

visits conducted.

4.2.7.3. The number of students screened or treated through
School-Based Oral Health Services.

4.2.8. For Community-Based Oral Health Services agreements:

4.2.8.1. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
agreements established.

4.2.8.2. The number of Community-Based Oral Health Services
site visits conducted.

4.2.8.3. The numberof individuals screened or treated through
Community-Based Oral Health Services.

4.2.8.4. The number of individuals in SUD settings screened,
treated and referred.

4.2.9. For SUD-related training:

4.2.9.1. Report on match.

4.2.9.2. Number and type of CEUs provided.

4.2.9.3. Number of training sessions conducted.

4.2.9.4. Number of attendees who participated in training
sessions.

4.2.9.5. Report on RQI cycles findings and related

JSl Research & Trairvng Insliiule. Inc. <^/
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improvements.

4.2.9.6. Evaluation results for knowledge increase among
training attendees.

4.2.10. ForBSS:

4.2.10.1. Number of hygienists recruited;

4.2.10.2. Nurhber of hygienists trained;

4.3. The Contractor shall provide aggregate screening data collected from the
Third Grade Survey during the 2019-2020 school year'to the Department
upon completion of the third grade screenings in a format approved by the
Department.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a process for accepting applications for oral
health funding frorn vendors to the Department for approval no later than 2
weeks from the contract effective date.

5.2. The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with school based
programs no later than 6 months from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall create contracts/agreements with community based
programs no later than 8 rhonths from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide training curriculum identified in SulDsection 2.6
to the. Department for approval no later than three (3) weeks prior to
scheduling the first-training.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure'an SBIRT consultant works with an SBIRT-
trained dental professional to deliver academic sessions for dentists at least
three (3) times per year.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for:

S.'e.l. Three (3) POMP trainings per year for dentistsjri DHPSAs.

5.6.2. Up to six (6) dental pain management trainings between 6/30/2020
and 6/31/2021 for dentists and emergency department physicians in
DHPSAs-

5.7. The Contractor shall submit the finalized communications plan and materials
in to the Department for approval no later than 10 business days prior to

. releasing the plan and materials to the Advisory Group partners.

5.8. The Contractor shall ensure any changes to the Work Plan in Exhibit A-1 are
provided to the Department in writing within five (5) business days of the

JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc
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changes being accepted.

5.9. The Contractor shall meet all performance measures and deliverables
Identified in Exhibit A-1, Work Plan.

JSl Research & Training lr\siituie. Inc.
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

Project AIM:: Support the NH Oral Health Program's .delivery of federajiy funded proj^ conduct pral.
health surveillance In schools; support the-NH oral hcialth'workforce, speclfiMllyrih Dental HPSAs.-with
targeted trairiings; and contract with-tfeatmenf-based oral health programs (schobl^3^$^d'
oommunity-based), in Order to reduce; untreated dental; decay.in childrenVadplescehts apdja NH.

Organizations Involved: (1) The Community Health Institute - CHI (2) NH Oral Health Program - OHP, (3) ASTOO. (4) NH OPHS Chronic
Disease Section (OPHS), (5) Sub-Recipients - SRs

YEAR 1 (PY1): JANUARY 2019 - AUGUST 31, 2019
Year 1 Project Goals:

•  1. Develop/solicit applications to provide school-based prevenlalive oral health services to low-income. onWunder-insured children and
adolescents.

2. Develop/soficit applications to provide community-based prevenlative oral health services to low-income, un-Ainder-insured children,
adolescents, and adults.

3. Implement/administer contracts/agreements with dental centers to perform screening- fluoride treatmenl-referral visits at SUD treatment
centers.

4. Convene an Advisory Group.

5. Convene a Work Group.

6. Support Work Group in planning efforts to increase the reach of FRL schools for py2.
7. Prepare for a Basic Screening Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

•dbj^bve li SuccessfuIly manage a mulb-year prpj^^^ -J. .j: - iV."

.Activity:.i;Project Management" . /' .*■

'  -'tVy" .tasks.,' ,  tlrneframe •  "i •Milestohe/ '

.  r •s'bcllverable

JSI Research & Tratrting Institvte. I.nc
d/b/a Community Health-Institute'
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EXHIBIT A - 1WORKPLAN

1.1. Conduct a Project Kick-off Meeting to review the project scope. Initial
Project Schedule, a presentation on. and discussion of the project
management best practices to be utilized, and a review of the
templates.

WHhin five business days of

the contract effective date (or

other agreed upon date)

Project Meeting
Presentation

1.1.1. Submit an updated Project Schedule, which will be the basis for the
approved Baseline Project Schedule, which shall consist of:
(Project milestones; Activities; Deliverables; Task dependencies; and
Due Dates).

Wrthin five business days of

the Project Kickoff

Meeting

Project Schedule

1.1.2. Establish the Project Reposiioty that will be comprised of all project-
related documentation and access will be provided to appropriate
Department users.

WHhin five business days of

the Project Kickoff
Meeting

Project Repository

1.1.3. Schedule Project Status Meetings following the Project Kick-off
Meeting.

Within five business days of

the Project Kickoff
Meeting

Project Status Meeting (PSM)
Schedule

1.2. Conduct a PSM Kick-off Meeting with the OHP to validate the work

'plan, performance measures, arid report formats.

Within 30 business days of

contract effective date

Meeting

Work Plan

1.2.1 Provide notes frorh the Project Status Meetings to the OHP Wrthin three business days

of the Project Status Meeting

Meeting Notes

1.3. PSM Bi-weekly Meetings with the OHP to discuss meeting and call
schedules, activities, budgets and/or performance measures.

0i-weeKiy Meetings

Meeting Notes

1.3.1. Assess joint progress toward objectives and activities in order to assist
DPHS wHh sharing products related to grant activities.

Semi-annual Meeting Documents

Videos (potentially)

Reports

1.3.2. If requested by the Department, schedule a <30 minute Daily Huddle
during the most complex or challenging stages of the project.

Daily, as needed Huddle

1.3.3. Maintain the baseline and current Project Schedules using a project
management software solution that enables schedule of analysis.

Ongoing Project Reports

JSI Researcti

dAVa Commu
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EXHIBIT A - 1WORKPLAN

recalculates dates based upon approved changes, and tracks variances
to the approved baseline.

1.3.4. Ensure tasks and actfvHies are identrfied, monitored, and tracked; risks
and issues are identified, and delivefables meet the stated iequinements
and are'delivered according to the approved baseline Project Schedule.

Ongoing Project Monitoring

Activi^.2vReporting:

"  ■ Tasks-'

,  '

■ ' ■ iMiieston^
Defiyerable .

•f . • T

2.1 Provide the number of sutwecipient contracts/agreements in place for

school-based dental programs, community-based dental programs.

. By August 31 st each year Report

2.2. Provide Annual Reports:

• Annual School-Based-Program Report Form.

• Annual Community-Based Report Form.

• Annual Narrative Report that includes performance measures for

oral health visits by dental hyglentsts from sub-redpient dental

centers to adults at SUD treatment centers.

• Annual Performance Report for all continuing education sessions

delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in

DHPSAs.

• Annual Nanative Report describing the communications

products created and activities implemented from the

Communications Plans for the school-based oral health

programs and community water fluoridation activities.

By August 31st each year Annual School-Based

Program Report Form

Annual Community-Based

Report Form

Annual SUO Narrative Report

Annual DHPSA Performance

Report

Annual Communications

Narrative Report

2.3. Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shall.contain a summary of

the sub redpient's:

• Wor1( accomplished during the reporting period;

• Updated Project Schedule identifying variances to baseline;

• Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting those issues that

Monthly Monthly Progress Reports

JSI Research & Training liistitute. Inc
d/h/a Community Heatth Institute
RFP-2019-DPHS-21-ORALH

Exhitxt A.1 WofV Plan
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EXHIBIT A -1 WORKPUN

require immediate escalation to ensure timely resolution;

• A list of the highest priority risks, risk ownership and status of the

mitigation plan for each;

•  Planned work for the next reporting period; and.

•  Requests for Department assistance necessary to ensure

' successful project delivery.

.Obj^tiye 2: Su^eiss^lly.develop,, release,Ve^ administer arid.manage^^^ brderio rieych''yuine .
• populations-with dental-services in NH:* . "-' ■' ' •' - •• **• " ~ •• -*' .. •; [i"'- ' " T ; J.- - "■

Activj^'.3/.Sub^Cbntract/M0y Pr6jcurement & Managcfrient'-. : • > -' . ■* . • •

.  . r *.: .* V*,. .

f'/ tasks- ■ tlrrieframe'' .

'  ; . -•

.Milestone/; - ^u
Deliyerabje' 'y;

« .c •' .*

3.1 Develop sub-recipient contracts/agreements with; school-based
denial programs and community-based dental programs.

By August 31, 2019 Contracts

3.1.1. Develop and implement an unbiased process for selecting sub
recipients to enter into contracts/agreements with CHI. to deliver school-
based or community-based oral health services.

By February 28, 2019 Unbiased Process
RFPs Released

3.1.2. Create contracts/agreements with selected entities to provide services
through August 31, 2021 with options to renew services for up to three
additional years.

By April, 30. 2019 School-based Contracts
Community-based Contracts

3.2. Develop sub-recipient contracts/agreements with dental centers. By August 31, 2019 Contracts

3.2.1. Work to implement and administer contracts/agreements with dental
centers to perform screening-fluoride treatment-refenal irisits at
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment centers (to promote oral

By February 28. 2019 Dental Center Contracts

JSI Research & Training Institule. Inc
d/b/a Community Heatlh Institute
RFP.201W)PHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A-t Work Plan
Page 4 of 16

Contractor Initi

Date: 2/4/19



EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

health services and rBferraisfor dental treatment) through August 31,
2021.

3.3. Work with the OHP to develop a Memorandum of Understanding

(MOU) wHh dentat hygienists (preferably CPHOHs) to conduct the

screenings of third grade students in accordance virith BSS requirements
and in coordination with a survey expert from the Association of State
and Territorial Dental Directors (ASTOD) and the DPHS Chronic

Disease Section Epidemiologist.

By February 28. 2019 Community Public Health

Dental Hygienists MOUs

^bbje'^yc 3:iTraih;de1riiiists:arid ierrt de^i^ent physicians ItvDHPSAs
.:dentarpaih.man'agerTiientn^^ i-;" - .

soVtorirMt use bf.the PDMP,S'BIRT aiid^pwicriblrig fdr:

; Objective-^:Jncne;ase;^^e rê ch of sctio'dl-'bas;^ pral-hea^-.pipgramV^e schopfs'yrith s&dehl pariic.ii
vin the.FRL.program.^^ / " V-'. r / -j. ^ 5■' V

Jati b rrTates^ 61 or rnp re i

V-'^ ■ T-:

>•*

e S: Convene stakSolders.tofofm.^ari Advisory Group and Worj<*Groijp. . v-^-; ..
y.:f -I ■

: Acli.vity 4i,Proj«t Manage^cnW grant ;. -K' • •  ' ■ " yy '
1  •'

.  ' • • •• .'

i' ' ■ ! ■ ■ ■ \ * "V-

.  .Tasks
Tirrieframe. •• : .Miiestonef

jl ■* .Deliverabie; > J>'.

4.1. Development and delivery of education in Dental Healtti Professional.
Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) for dentists on (1) the use of the Prescriptbn
Drug Monitoring Prograrh (POMP). (2) Integration of Screening. Brief
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (S8IRT). and for dentists and
emergency department physicians. (3) prescribing for dental pain
management.

By August 31. 2019 Education developed

.4.1.1. Contracting with or Identifying a CHI S8IRT consultant January 2019 Contract

4.1.2, Environmental scan/assessment and survey of dentists in DHPSAs January - April. 2019 Assessment

JSI Research & Trainkig Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-20t9-DPHS-21-ORALH

Exhit3it A-1 Wo(V Plan
Pa^e 5 of 16

Contractor Irvti
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

4.1.3. Contracting with an SBIRT-trained dental professional to develop and

implement academic detailing sessions for dentists in OHPSAs.

By Apfil, 2019 Contract

4.1.3.1. Develop academic detailing sessions for dentists in OHPSAs on POMP By August 31, 2019 Sessions developed

4.1.3.2. Develop academic detailing sessions for dentists in OHPSAs on SBIRT By August 31. 2019 Sessions developed

4.1.3:3. Develop acaderrvc detailing sessions for dentists and emergency

department physicians In OHPSAs on prescribing for dental pain

management.

By August 31. 2019 Sessions developed

4.2. Conduct activities that will increase the reach of school- based oral

health programs serving schools with student participation rates of
50% or more in the Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.

By August 31. 2019

4.2.1. Assist in convening Advisory Group Partners. By August 31, 2019 Advisory Group meeting

4.2.2. Assist in convening Work Group Partners. By August 31. 2019 Work Group meeting

4.3. Work with the OHP to prepare for a Basic Screening Survey (6SS)

for New Hampshire Third Graders to update The New Hampshire 2013-

14 Healthy Smiles - Healthy Growth Third Grade Survey.

By August 31. 2019 BSS Prepared

4.3.1. Work with the OHP to convene a training session for the dental

hygienists (CPHDHs) who have an MOU to conduct the screenings of
third grade students, prior to the 2019-2020 school year.

By August 31. 2019 CPHDHs trained

4.3.1.1. Review previous surveys and results. By August 31, 2019 Analysis

4.3.1.2. Conduct key informant interviews with OHP and a selection CPHDHs. By August 31, 2019 KM Outcomes

JSi Research & Trairting InstitutQ. Inc
<2/b/a Community Heatth institute
RFP.20t9-OPHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A-t Work Plan

Page 6 of 16
Contractor IrAi

Data: 2/4/ig



EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

4.3.1.3. Review prior findings and data. By August 31, 2019 Analysis

4.3.1.4. Discuss gaps in the data collected. By August 31. 2019 Meeting

4.3.1.5. Establish the implementation plan. By August 31, 2019 Plan

4.3.1.6. Revise the BSS survey tool if needed. By August 31. 2019 BSS Tool

4.3.1.7. Pilot test the final version of the BSS. By August 31, 2019 BSS Tool Final

4.3.2. Record and provide access to the CPHDH training session for the Third
Grade Survey.

By August 31, 2019 Training saved/provided

4.3.3. Evaluate CPHDH training via survey and provide the output to OHP. By August 31, 2019 Feedback from training

YEAR 2 (PY2): SEPTEMBER 1. 2019 • AUGUST 31. 2020
Year 2 Project Goals:

8. Monitor school-based preventallve oral health service contracts and their performance measures. ,
-  9. Monitor community-based preyentative oral health service contracts and their performance measures.

10. Monitor dental center service contracts performing screening and referral visits at SUD treatment centers.
11. Support the Advisory Group's and Work Group's Communication Plan efforts.

12. Support execution of the Basic Screening Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

Objwtiye l: Successfully manage ̂a rnulti-yeaf project - . •.v.-".'/-;'
•  A.

JSi Research & Training Institute, inc
d/b/a Community hteatth Ir^tute
RFP.2019-OPHS-21-ORALH '

Exhibit A-1 Work Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

Activctyjx Prpject tonagement... * * V:-'):-.'}''- .'?• ' '•
t*-' • • ••'. •• • ■ ' ■ 'V .V

,  T ' ' tasks' ' i". ' , . ■ . '  .tlmeframe'' / •. Milestone/ ...

. Deliverable • •

1.1

PSM Bi-weekly Meetings with the OHP to discuss meeting and call schedules,
activities, budgets and/or performance measures.

Bi-weekly Meetings

Meeting Notes

Updated Work Plan

1.1.1

Provide notes from the Project Status Meetings to the OHP Within three business

days of the Project Status

Meeting

Meeting Notes

1.2.

Assess joint progress toward objectives and activities in order to assist OPHS
with sharing products related to grant activities

Semi-annual Meeting Documents

Videos (potentially)
Reports

1.2.1.

If requested by the Department, schedule a <30 minute Daily Huddle during the
rrwst complex or challenging stages of the project.

Daily, as needed Huddle

1.2.2.

Maintain the baseline and current Project Schedules using a project
management software solution that enables schedule of analysis, recalculates
dates based upon approved changes, and tracks variances to the approved
baseline.

Ongoing Project Reports

1.2.3.

Ensure tasks and activities are identified, monitored, and tracked; risks and
Issues are kJentified. and deliverables meet the stated requirements and are
delivered according to the approved baseline Project Schedule.

Ongoing Project Monitoring

Actlvliy 2". Reporting: , . .

tjasks . • ^ ' ,' Tlmeframe. "Milestone/,'- -

■ Deilyerable."

Provide the number of sub-recipient contracts/agreements in place for School- By August 31st each year Report

JSI Researc^ & Training Institute. Inc.
Community Health Institiitis

RFP-2019-OPHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A.1 Wotk Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

2.1 based dental programs. Community-based dental programs.

2.2.

Provide Annual Reports:-

• Annual School-Based Program Report Form.

• Annual Community-Based Report Form.
•  Annual Narrative Report that includes performance measures for oral

health visits by dental hyglenists from sub-recipient dental centers to
adults at SUD treatment centers.

• Annual Performance Report for all continuing education sessions
delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians InDHPSAs.

• Annual Narrative Report describing the communications products created
and activities implemented'from the Communications Plans for the
school-based oral health programs and community water fluoridation
activities. .

By August 31 st each year Annual School-Based

Program Report Form
Annual Community-

Based Report Form

Annual SUD Narrative

Report

Annual DHPSA

Performance Report

Annual Communications

Narrative Report

2.3.

Provide aggregate screening data collected from the Third Grade Survey for the
Department during the 2019-2020 school-year

By August 31.2020 Third Grade Survey

Data Report

2A.

Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shall contain a summary of the sub
redpienfs:
• Work accomplished during the reporting period;

• Updated Project Schedule identifying variances to baseline;
•  Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting those issues that require

immediate escalation to ensure timely resolution;

• A list of the highest.priority risks, risk ownership and status of the
mitigation plan for each;

•  Planned work for the next reporting period; and,

• Requests for Department assistance necessary to ensure successful
project delivery.

Monthty Monthly Progress

Reports

■pbj^ jve!2: SuccdsSfuiiy mariageWuttip^ MOUs Ih.q'rder to reach yulnerabi? p6pu1atipns iMth'de^

.AcUvity.3. Sub^qntract/MOU Management " i, =- . " •

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc
d/b/a Communiiy Health Institute
RFP.2019^P HS-21-ORAL H
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPIAN

■•-Tasks .Timcfra.me . .fyiilestpfie/-
' . C^iiybrable

3.1 Monitor sub-recipient contracts/agreements wiih: school-based dental
programs and conhmunity-based dental programs.

Sept 1,2019- AugSI.
2020

Sub-recipient reports
40% match

3.1.1. Monitor performance measures and reporting of schooi-t)ased and community-
based oral health services.

Sept 1.2019- Aug31.
2020

Sub-redpient reports

3.1.2. Process sub-redpient invoices, monthly. Monthly Invoices submitted to
DHHS

3.1.3. Include CDC funds for an Enhancement Program developed by the Work Group
in sub-recipient contracts for eligible sdiool-based dental programs. The
enhancement program will be for non-clinical supports to the eligible sub-
recipient schoo^based-programs, such as: portable equipment, pabent chair,
hygienist stool, light, supplies, adrninistrative salary/benefits, and incentives for
students to return completed permission forms.

By August 31, 2020 Enhancement Program
In sub-redpient
contracts

3.2. Monitor sub-fecipient contracts/agreemente with dental centers to perform
screening-ftuoride treatment-referral visi^ at Substance Use Disorder (SUD)
treatment centers.

By August 31.2020 Sub-redpient reports
40% match

3.1.1. Monitor performance measures and reporting of denial centers services. Sept 1.2019-Aug 31,
2020

Sut>-redpient reports

3.3. Wofk with the OHP to monitor dental hyglenists/CPHDHs conducting the
screenings of third grade students in.accordance with BSS requirements and in
coordination with a survey expert from the Association of Slate and Territorial
Dental Directors (ASTDD) arid the OPHS Chronic Disease Section
Epidemiologist.

Sept 1.2019-Aug 31.
2020.

Community Public
Health Dental Hygienists
MOUs

dbjei^ve 3: ti^irf-dentists aritl emergency department physicians iri"-pHPSAs'on cbit«t use'bf ̂ e PPMb; SBIRT^n^/pres for " ̂
.bental'pain managemeiiL. ; 7 ' r.- >, .v :■ 5-''!..'" ^

JSI Research & Traintng Institute, inc
d/b/a Community Health institule
RFP.2019-OPHS-21-ORALH
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EXHIBIT A - 1WORKPLAN

. Objective 4f rncrease^the, reach of.schbf9l--'bascd.oral. heafth^programs.se^^^^ 5,ctioo
in the F.RL progratfi.-

Is' wit^s tudehtparticipatipr»rateVof 5b®A*pr nidre * ;;

Objective'5: AisisVAdyisory Group.and^Work Group in Cqmrfiunicaticn and EnhahcemeHt p

Activity 4.,projieciManagement for HRSA Oral.Heatth Wb^drce ̂rant-.>; -.. •'ft " ̂

> •-

;  ' Tasks TImeframe . " ' MTlteslpne/ •
DeHverablef  .. .

4.1. Monitor SBIRT-trained dental professionaJ in their implementation of academic
detailing sessions for dentists in OHPSAs on the Integratbn of Screening, Brief
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT).

3 times by August 31.

2020

3 Trainings conducted

4.1.1. Provide logistiral support for POMP trainirigs for dentists in DHPSAs. 3 times by August 31.

2020

3 Trainings conducted

4.1.2. Provide logistical support for up to six dental pain management trainings for
dentists and emergency department physicians in OHPSAs.

1-6 times by August 31,

2020

1-6 Trainings conducted

4.1.3. Assess effectiveness of trainings via survey. By August 31,2020 Survey report

4.1.4. Collect report from SBIRT-trained dental professional on process outcomes fer
al) trainings.

August 31, 2020 Report

4.2. Conduct activities that will increase the reach of school- based oral health

programs serving schools with student participation rates of 50% or more in the
Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.

By August 31. 2020

4.2.1. Support bi-annual convening's for soon-to-be-named Advisory Group partners
and quarterly convening's for soon-to-be-named Work Group partners.

By August 31, 2020 2 Advisory Group

meetings

4 Work Group meetings

4 2.2. Implement a Communications Plan to support school-based program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

By August 31,2020 Communications

activities

4.3. Collect surveillance data during PY 2 from the Basic Screening Survey hygienlsts By August 31. 2020 Data collection

JSI Research & Training institute. Inc.
<]/Va Community Health Institute
RFP-20t9-OPHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A-1 Work Plan
Page ii of 16
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

and share the collected screening data (without Pll) with the Department. Data reporting

YEAR 3 (PY3): SEPTEMBER 1. 2020 - AUGUST 31. 2021
Year 2 Project Goals:

13. Monitor and evaluate for extension the school-t>ased preventative oral health service contracts and their performance measures.
14. Monitor and evaluate for extension community-based preventative oral health service contracts and their performance measures..
15. Monrtor dental center service contracts performing screening and referral visits at SUD treatment centers.
""16. Support the Advisory Group's and Work Group's Communication Plan efforts.
17. Report data from Basic Screening Survey (BSS) of NH Third Graders.

fe:j1: SiiccMsfulIy manage a.multi-year ■ ■: rc. "  V!?"

Activity: 1. Project Management

Tasks' ■ . Timetrame -^Milestone/
•  '.-Deliverable'

s. ■ ^ '

1.1
PSM Bi-weekty Meetings with the OHP to discuss meeting and call schedules,
activities, budgets and/or performance measures.

Bt-weekly Meetings
Meeting Notes
Updated Work Plan

1.1.1

Provide notes from the Project Status Meetings to the OHP Within three business

days of the Project Status
Meeting

Meeting Notes

1.2.
Assess joint progress toward objectives and activities in order to assist DPHS
with sharing products related to grant actrvrties

Semi-annual Meeting Documents
Videos (potentially)
Reports

JSI Research & Training Instrtute. tnc. '
(J/b/a Community Health institute
RFP-2019-OPHS.2 lORALH

Exhib't A-1 Woht Plan
Page 12 of 16

Contractor (yitial

Date: 2/V19



EXHtBtT A - 1 WORKPLAN

1.2.1.

If rdquQsted by the Department, schedule a <30 minute Daily Muddle during the

most comptex or challengtng stages of the project.

Daily, as needed Huddle

1.2.2.

Maintain the.baseline and current Project Schedules using a project

management software sotution that enables schedule of analysis, recalculates

dates based upon approved changes, and tracks variances to the approved
baseline.

Ongoing Project Reports

1.2.3.

Ensure tasks and actives are rdentifted, monitored, and tradked; risks and
issues are identified, and deliverables meet the stated requirements and are
delivered according to the approved baseline Project Schedule.

Ongoing Project Monitoring

1.3. Schedule and conduct a Final Project Meeting during which the Acceptance

Log will be presented for Department approval and sign-off.
By August 31. 2021 Meeting

Acceptance Log

1.4. Transfer the project repository, including-ail documentation falling within state
ownership, to the Department.

By August 31. 2021 Project Repository

transfer

1.5. Be available for a Lessons Learned session facilitated by the Department. At close of project Lessons Learned

Session

Activity 2. Reporting

t  -tasks.•• •.' ' TImcframc Milestone/' '

. Deliverable

2.1

Provide the number of sutKrecipient contracts/agreements in place for: School- .

based dental programs, Community-based dental programs.

By August 31. 2021 Report

2.2.

Provide Annual Reports:

• Annual School-Based Program Report Form.
Annual Community-Based Report Form.

• Annual Narrative Report that includes performance measures for oral
health visits by dental hygienists from.sub-recipient dental centers to

adults at SLID treatment centers.

By August 31. 2021 Annual School-Based

Program Report Form

Annual Community-

Based Report Form

Annual SUD Narrative

Report

JSI Researcfi & Trantng tnsftuto. Inc
d/b/a Community Heatlh Institute
RFP-2019-OPHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A-tWortPlan
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EXHIBIT A - 1WORKPLAN

• Annual Performance Report for all continuing education sessions

delivered to dentists and emergency department physicians in DHPSAs.

• Annual Narrative Report describing the communications products

created arid act.ivllies implemented from the Communications Plans for

the school-based oral health programs and community water fluoridation

activities.

Annual OHPSA

Performance Report

Annual Communications'

Narrative Report

2.3.

Provide a Monthly Progress Reports which shall contain a summary ol the sub

recipient's;
• Work accomplished during the reporting period;

• Updated Project Schedule identifying variances to baseBne;

•  Status of prioritized open issues, highlighting those Issues that require

immediate escalation to ensure timely resolution:

• A list of the highest priority risks, risk ownership and status of the

mitigation plan for each;

•  Planried work for the next reporting period; and.

• Requests for Department assistance necessary to ensure successful
project delivery.

Monthly Monthly Progress

Reports

^Objecjive 2:,SuccessKjIly,manage and evaluate for extension ffiuftipJeicbhl^.cte and.MOUs in order tb'reiicHyvlnerable^

Activity 3. Sub-Contract/MOU Management

■  . ■ tasks- ■ ; •  TIriieffbme .Milestone/'

Deiiverabfe » V

3.1 Monitor sub-recipient contracts/agreements with: school-based dental

.programs and community-based dental programs.

Sept 1.2020-Aug 31,

2021

Sub-recipient reports

40% match

3.1.1. Monitor performance measures and reporting of community-based bra! health
services.

Sept 1, 2020- Aug 31,

2021

Sub-recipient reports

3.1.2. Process sub-recipient invoices, monthly. Monthly Invoices submitted to

DHHS

JSI Research & Trainirq Institute, inc
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RF P-2019-OPHS-21-ORALH

Exhibit A-1 Wotk Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

3.1.3. , Include CDC funds for an EnhancemenI Program developed by the Worit Group

in sub-recipient contracts for eligible school-based dental programs. The

enhancement program will be for non-clinical supports to the eligible sub-

recipient school-based programs, such as: portable equipment, patient chair,
hygienist stool, light, supplies, administrative satary/behefils, and incentives for
students to return completed permission forms.

By August 31, 2021 Enhancement Program

in sub-recipient

contracts

3.2. Monitor sub<ecipient contracts/agreements with dental centers to perform

screening-fluoride treatment-referral visits at Substiance Use Disorder (SLID)
treatment centers.

By August 31. 2021 Sub-recipient reports

40% match

3.1.1. Monitor performance measures and reporting of community-based oral health

services.

Sept 1. 2020-Aug 31.

2021

Sub-recipient reports ■

3.2.3. Consult with the OHP in early 2021 to determine whether school-based denUI
programs will be extended and to assist the OHP in actions to preserve
community-based services for NH's low-income, uninsured, and under-insured
children and adolescents including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid.

Early 2021 Determination on

extensions

3.2.4. Create contracts/agreements with selected entities to provide services through
August 31. 2021 with options to renew services for up to two additional years
(Sept 1. 2021-Aug 31. 2023). _ .

Early 2021 Contract Extensions

3.2.S.. Consulting with the OHP in early 2021 to determine v/helher existing
contract/agreements for community-based dental programs will be extended
and to assist the OHP in actions to preserve school-based services for NH's
low-income, uninsured, and under-insured children, adolescents, and adults
Including those enrolled in New Hampshire Medicaid.

Early 2021 Determination on

extensions

3.2.6. Create contracts/agreements with selected entities to provide services through
August 31, 2021 with options to renew services for up to two additional years
(Sept 1, 2021 -Aug 31. 2023).

Earty 2021 Contract Extensions

.Gbjective;3: Trainxleritiists and eniergency departme'ntphysiclans'.ln.bHPSto'dh corTcct•u15C;pfJhe.PbMP;•SBIRT^and^pre:scribi^g for'"

.dentalpain management V .t- • -ri u-L. -v.! '• .'l':'"-

JSI Ressafch &'Training Institute. Inc
dAVa Community Health Institute
RFP-2019-OPHS-210RALH

A>1 Work Plan
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EXHIBIT A - 1 WORKPLAN

.Objec'tive'4:Jncrease_Ae reachrof school-based oral health prc^raiTiV;se^ng:sch(^ls Vrtth student partclp^^^ 50% or more
:,ih-the' FRV-prograrn.~\. ■ "a,; "; . ^ '-i.e.". C.' >!'*

■Objective 5:-;Assist Advisory Group and Work Group in Communication acuities. ': ;V

Activity 4. Project Management for HRSA Oral Heattti Workforce grant

' ' Tasks. ■. 'tlmeframe •  Mliestoxie/'
Deliverable:

4.1. Monitor SBlRT-trained dental professional in their implementation of academic
detailing sessions for dentists in DHPSAs on the integration of Screening. Brief
Intervention and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT).

3 times by August 31.
2021

3 Trainings conducted

4.1.1. Provide logistical support for POMP trainings for dentists in OHPSAs. 3 times by August 31.
2021

3 Trainings conducted

4.1.2. Provide logistical support for up to six dental pain managerhent trainings for
dentists and emergency department physicians in DHPSAs.

6 times by August 31,
2021

6 Trainings conducted

4.1.3. Assess trainings via survey. By August 31. 2021 Survey feedback

4.2. Conduct activities that will Increase the reach of school- based oral health
programs serving schools v/ith student participation rates of 50% or more in the
Free and Reduced Lunch (FRL) program.

By August 31. 2021

4.2.1. Support bi-annual convenlng's for soon-to-be-named Advisory Group partners
and quarterly convenlng's for soon-to-be-named Work Group partners.

By August 31, 2021 2 Advisory Group
meetings
4 Work Group meetings

4.2.2. Implement a Communications Plan to support school-based program activities
developed by the Work Group during PY 2 and PY 3.

By August 31, 2021 Communications

activities

QU'i



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8,
Price Lirhitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with general funds and federal funds as follows;

Source of Funds Year 1

(SFY19)
Year 2

(SFY20)
Year 3

(SFY21)

Year 4

(SFY22)

2.1. 100% Federal Funds from Centers

for Disease Control & Prevention.

Preventive Health & Health

Services Block Grant. CFOA
#93.758. Federal Award

Identification . Number (FAIN),
NB010T009205.

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $0

2.2. 39.74% Federal Funds from

Centers for Disease Control &

Prevention, Preventive Health &
Health Services Block Grant

CFDA #93.758. FAIN
NB01OT009205 and 60.26%

General Funds

$420,000 $600,000 $600,000 $60,000

2.3. 100% Federal Funds from Centers

for Disease Control & Prevention.
State Actions to Improve Oral
health outcomes CFDA #93.366,
FAINNU58DP006487

$166,369 $181,369 $181,369 $15,000

2.4. 100% Federal Funds from Health

Resources & ■ Services

Administration. Grants to States to

Support Oral Health Workforce
Activities. CFDA #93.236, FAIN
T12HP31859

$136,238 $100,000 $100,000 $0

TOTALS $737,607 $896,369 $896,369 $75,000

JS) Research & Training institute

RFP-201B-OPHS-21-ORALH

R«v. 01/08/10
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Oral Health Promotion Partner

Exhibit B

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, v/hich includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to a minimum of 40% of the federal HRSA grant identified in Subsection 2.4,
above.

4. The Contractor shall ensure the annual 40% required match in Section 3, above, is in
non-federal contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly providing HRSA
project activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) as approved-by
the Department as specified In Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work.

■ Subsection 2.1, Paragraph 2.1.3 and Subsection 2.6.

5. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

6. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

6.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred
in the fulfillment, of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item, as specified in Exhibits 8-1. Budget through Exhibit B-4. Budget..

6.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which Identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

6.3.The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

6.4.The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, Gerieral Provisions' Block 1.7
Completion Date.

9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DPHSc0ntractbillin9@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:-

Financial Administrator
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

iiii«JSl Rosoofcn & Treining Institute e*nibii b Coni/ociof iniiisi
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit B

10. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and In this Exhibit 8.

11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been salisfaciorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12.Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line Items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSl Reseorch & Tmining Insiilute ExWW B Coni/ocior inftiau
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New Hsmpshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPFCIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shali be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligibie
individuals and. iri the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If (he Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies ar>d procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination-. Eligibility deierminatlons shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation; In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which Tile shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The. Contractor shall furnish the Department viith all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hoaringa: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants ar>d agrees that ail applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appticant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of (he Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the. performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any'officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retrooctiva Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by (he parlies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor (or costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to (he Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions .of Purchaso: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed (o obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts-reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rale charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. .If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursemeniin

excess of costs;
Exhibit C - Spociflt Provisiont Cont/BCiorinlilbb'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcea
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contracror is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all furtds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

B. Malntonanco of Records: In addition'lo the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

B.I. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs-and expenses, and which are acceptable lo the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each'recipient of
services during the Contract Period, wtiich records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoicies submitted to the Department lo obtain
payment for such services.

■  8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each palient/recipienl of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and hfon
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as

'  they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of. Health and Hurnan Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access lo all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Coritract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or'federal audit exceptions and shall return lo the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidontiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such inforfhation in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

e*hiwt C - SpOcJil pfovisioos ■ ContrBclof tnillBgCT^ V
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Now Hompohiro Oopartmont of Hoalth and Human Servlcos
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph Shan survive the termination of the Contract for any reason wt^atsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
'  limes if requested by the Oepartment.

11:1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
aH costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Oepartment to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
destgnaied by the Depa/tmeni or deemed satisfactory by the Oepartment.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be subrnittad within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summery statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Depanment.

12. Completion of Servlcos: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price (imitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of (he parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of (he Contract are to be performed after the er)d of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Oeparlment shall retain the right, at its disaelion. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, res.earch reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document elc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Harnpshlre. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: At) materials (written, video, audio) produced or

purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyrighl ownership for any and all original materials
' produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,

posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwilhout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facllllios: Compllanco with Laws end Regulations; (n the operation of any facilities
for providing services, (he Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
(he Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements; the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of (his Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requtremenls of the State Office of (he Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equol Employmoni Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C > SpscUl Provisions Conlrvclor Inlila
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit en EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 erriployees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifyir»g it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Norv
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.u5doj/aboul/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf. .

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting egency guidance, nationalorigln
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1960 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, CoritraclorB must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstloblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor'6mploy66 WHisneBLOwER RK5KTS AND ReouiRfiMeNT To Inform EMPLOvees of
■ WH1STL6BL0VVER Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whisdeblov/er rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Aulhorizalion Act for Fiscal Yeair 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the wor1<force.
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) the Cpntractor shall insert the substartce of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or furvctions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(8). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsiWe to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Corttractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
re8|x>n8ibiillie8 end how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate '

19.3. fylonltof the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

r

OViVil
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions: .

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with slate and federal lavrs, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH OepartmenI of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department ar>d containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance wilh the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean (hat period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit 8 of the Contract.

20.6. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to In Ihe Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to lime.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExMOIt C - special PfovUioni ConirBClot Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of Ihe General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement. Is
replaced as follows;

4. ■ CONDITIONAi. NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Slate
hereunder, ir>duding ̂ thout itmitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under (his Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
includir>g any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legi^abve or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the eppropriation or evaltabllity of funding for (his Agreement and the Scope of

V  Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope ̂  Services, in whole or In part, in no event ahail the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of epproprieted or available furtds. In
Ihe event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to svithhpld payment until such funds become available, if ever, the
State shall have the right to reduce, lermlnale or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modificalion.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, Is amended by adding the
followir>g language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written rK)lice that the State, is exercising its
option to terminate Ihe Agreement.

10.2 in the. event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to (he State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future' needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to,, any information or

. data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communicdtior) and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested,.

10.4 in the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients end other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed commur\icalion& in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate es described above.

3. Renewal:

The Deparlment reserves Ihe right to extend this Agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
approval of the Govomor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions (o Stondard r'rovtsions Contfactor Inltia
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contraclof identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-FreeWorlcplace Act of 1986 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; A^
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (artd by itiference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017:630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certificaliot^ to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of cedificales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set .out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that (he unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violdtions

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee'to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a corKJillon of

employmeni under the grant, the employee w'lll
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug .

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calenda^ days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph -1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, lo every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExMbk 0 - Caniricollon rapefUtng Drug Prse Cor^troctor Inltit
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of Ihe following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

I  1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partictpale satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enlorcement. or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2.1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided Iselow the sUefs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale. t\p code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name; 8r Tmlning Institute. Inc. d/b/a
raltb institute

February 4.2019
Date Name: jo/j

Title:

Eifhlbi 0 - Certincatioft fagardine Drug Ff»« Contmctor Initlab
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with ,lhe provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101*121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANO HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

/

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title lv-0
'Social Services BlocV Grant Program under TiUe XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX . .
'Community Sen/ices Slock Grant under TiUe VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certines, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, (hat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of e Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLl. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require (hat the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and tfiat ail sub-recipients shad certify end disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or'entered into. Submission of (his certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificalion shall be subjecl.lo a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: jsi R<s<arch ̂ Training Iniiiiuic. Inc. d/b/a
(e&llh Instiiuiie

^flliJn
February 4,2019

Date Name:
Tille: Regional Dirccior

lonaiFian
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor idenilfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provistons of
Executive Offrce of the President, Executive Order 12&49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarmeni.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certirication:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing end submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing (he
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below win not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. II necessary, (he prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection wilh the NH Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed -
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If il is later determined thai the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary parUcipanl shall provide immediaie written notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submined If at any time the prospective primary participant teams
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," 'lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaciiori..* "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implemenling Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
'attached definitions.

6. The prospeclive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) lhat, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not Knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction wilh a person who is debarreid.'euspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7.' The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Cenification Regarding Oebarmeni, Suspension; Ineligibiiity end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by OHHS, without m'odification. in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participani in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that il is not det>drrod. suspended. Ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from ihe covered transaction, unless il knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participani may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may. but is nol required to. check the Noriprocurement List (of excluded'parlies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to rer>der in good faith ihe certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibh f - Ceniftcxtlon Res»rd'iAO OetMfmen}. Susp«nilon Conutcior Inltigt^
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business deaiinqs.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certines to the best of its knowledge ar>d belief,'that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal'deparlment or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property:

11.3. are not presently indicled for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certincation; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated tor cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certirication. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CPR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1: are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared irieligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibiilty. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; )S! Jtcsearch & Training InstliuK. Inc. d/b/a
lily Health Institulc

February 4,20)9

Date Name;
Title; onal Director
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CERTtPICATtON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDiSCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAiTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiHed in Sections V11 and V12 ol the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor wili comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

> the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the cK/il rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benerus, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civi) Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2<X)0d, which prohibits recipients of federal Ttnancial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or ber^efiis, in any program or aclivliy;

. the-Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transporiailon;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on (he basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not.include
employmeril discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R, pi. 42
(U.S. Department ol Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnallon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal proiection of the iavys for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, wi^ich provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organ'izations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal TreatmenI for Falth-Bascd
Organizations): and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense AuU^orlzation
Act-(NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants arid contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representalion of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termlnalion of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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in the event a Federal or State court or-Federal or State administratrve agency makes a findtng of
discrimination after a due process hearir^g on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a reclpienl of funds, the recipient wiii forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections V11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foDowing
certification;

1. By signing and submitting (his proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: ISi Research & Training Institute. Inc. d/b/a
CommunityJlealih Institute

February4, 2019

Date Name:

Titl
art

e: RegionaI««'cctor
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, toan. or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Mediceid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatienl drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the faw may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$tOOO per day and/or the imposition of an administrative'compliarKe order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractors
representative asidenlined in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification; •

1  By signing and submitting th'is contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Pah C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: )SI Retearch 8c Training Injuiulf. Inc. d/b/a
.y CommunilyHcalihlnjiiruic

February 4, 2019

Oate Name
Title Reg rccior

6*hibii H - Certlfcalioc^ Regarding Contractor inkiab
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HgALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Dflflnltlona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45. •
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Oesionated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQareaation' shall have the same meariing as the term 'data aggregation' in 45CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health careoperations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and ClinicalHeallh
Act. TllleXIII, Subtitle D. Parl.1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health ■
Information. 45 CFR Paris 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. ■ 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as Ihe term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
.CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have Ihe sanrje meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have (he same meaning as the term "required by law' In 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Sen/icesor
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a starKlards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Bualneaa Asfloclate Use and Diaclosure of Protected Health information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute 8 violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate rhay use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (11) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
Knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosurie is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PMI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security

' safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall t>e bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qblloatlona at^d Activities of Buslnoaa Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the

'  protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

\

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of idenlifrers and the likelihood of re-identincation;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed.
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has beeri

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall, complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
. breach and immediately report the findings of (he risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. .

d. ' Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duly to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P'37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the'use anddisclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business ̂ sociate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individua.Hn order to meet the
requirements under 45 CPR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall makeavailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. ^

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding (he
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssociate •
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed toin
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeaslble, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity. In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obliaattons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or Itmitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addilion to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement.the Covered Entity may tmmedialefy terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's Knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Enlrty may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity.-lf Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVIIscellaneoua

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to lime. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to

•  a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that 11 has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or crealed on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. .
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Segregation. If any term or condillon of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or cifcumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are-dedared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the prelections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the-
startdard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the terrhinatlon of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit !.

Deperlment of Health end Human Services jSI Research & Training ̂ ^titute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
Name of theThe St

Signature of Authorized Representative

Li.sft
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Signature pf

Jonathan Slevvarl

reed Representative

Date

Name of Authorized Representative

Regional Director
Title of Authorized Representative

February 4. 2019

Date

V20I4 Eihlblll
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Page 6 ol 6

Contractor Initials

Dnta



Now Hsmpohire Oep&rtmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime ewardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October i, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health end Human Services (DHHS) must report the foiiowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3.' Funding agency
4. NAICS.code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
0. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS ff)
10. Total competisation and names of. the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues ere from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

■ 10.2. Compensation information is nol.already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the' provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Pari 170 (Reporling Subaward and Executive Compensation Inrormatlon). and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;'
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: ISI Rcseorch & Training Injiiiutc. Inc. d/h/o
Corntrmriiiy'tie&lih InsiUute

February 2019

Oaite Name; jonoin#
Title; Regional

Exhtbh J - Certiflcaiion RtQtrdIng tn« Fedaral Funtflne Contractor tnhiati^
.ivniinlahUtlv And Tf>ntflir*ncw Arl rPFATAt-Cfynalanca - ̂Accounlat>Uity And Ttanipartt>cy Ad (FFATA)-Complance

cu»DMHVtiori) Pego I ol 2 Data 2/4/19



Now Hampshire Oopartmontof Heatth and Human Services
EihlbltJ

forma

As the Contractor idenliried in Section V3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true end accurate.

1. The DUNS number for vour entity is: 14-5729117

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federel contracls. subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answW to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer ihe followir>9;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports Tiled under section I3(a} or 15(d) of Ihe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(a), 7eo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensetion of (he five most highly compensated ofTicers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUAHHS/MO?!}
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Dennitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personalty identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. VVith regard to Protected Health
Inforrhation.' Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
.Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Public,alion 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department

'  of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Conndeniial data' means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information inciudihg without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also irKludes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FT!). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User' means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident' means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firrrware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss bl data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted Pi. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an irKfividual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, niother's maiden
name, etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Inforrnalion' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Elecironic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C. and arr«ndmenls
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Heallh information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technotogy standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information..

1. The Contractor must' not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but no! limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidenlial Information in response to a

Socuftiy n»QuliomefMj -iM/io
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by taw, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying OHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DMHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at^ve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy eixl Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions end must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.-

4. The Contractor-agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may hot be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting OHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
<  hosting services, such as Oropbcx or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data..

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may onty transmil Confldenlial Data via certiried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a vinual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is empleying remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate-disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour autoKJelelion cycle (i.e. .Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Ck)nfidential Data via wireless devices, all .
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND OlSPOSITlON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such lin^e, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, olhenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees ll will not store, transfer or process data TOllected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing; cloud service or cloOd storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Deparlmerit confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidenlial information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAlvlP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive'intrusion-detectlon and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

t. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance- with industry-accepted standards' for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-66, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor wilj document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon, request. The written certification will include a!) details' necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data.using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or.stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycte. where applicable, (from
creation," transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NM systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match (hose.for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worl^ with the (Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate' pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreeriienl
(BAA), with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to corhptete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the sun/ey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside (he tx)undaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor'shall
make efforts to investigate (he causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from (he breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited lo: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone cad center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes, and regulations regarding the
.privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 tJ.'S.C. § 552a}. DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45

" C.F.R. Parts 160 and ,164) that govern protections for individually identlfiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is hot less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Deparlmeni of Information Technology.
Refer lo Vendor Resources/Procurement at https;//www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach nottfication and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and-the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect lo the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to onty those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure thal all End Users: ,

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented lo. protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS

• under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized lo
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by (aw.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and In ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessrrient of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the (Confidential Data
is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer, of any •
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidenls and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to, and
notwithstandir^, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor v/ill;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidenls;

3. Report suspected or confirmed lncidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core .response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notiftcation Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 3$9-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrlvacyOfricer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHStnformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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